AN ANALYSIS OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE PREWRITING STRATEGIES USED BY STUDENTS IN WRITING ESSAY IN UNIVERSITAS ISLAM RIAU

THESIS

Thesis Submittal in Partial Fulfillment Requirements

For the Degree of Sarjana of Education



NADIA HAUDINA NPM : 146310273

ENGLISH LANGUAGE EDUCATION FACULTY OF TEACHING TRAINING AND EDUCATION UNIVERSITAS ISLAM RIAU

erpustakaan)

Dokumen ini adalah Arsip Milik

2020

THESIS APPROVAL

AN ANALYSIS OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE PREWRITING STRATEGIES USED BY STUDENTS IN WRITING ESSAY IN UNIVERSITAS ISLAM

RIAU

Name	: Nadia Haudina : 146310273		
Student Number	: 146310273	140 D	
	: English Language Educat		
Faculty	: Teacher Training and Education		
Head Advisor		Vice Advisor	
Anne	R	2	
Dra.Hj.Syofianis Ism	ail., M.Ed.	Yulianto, S.Pd., M.Pd.	
NIDN. 0023045901		NIDN. 1018076901	
- H	Iead of English Language	Education	
	Miranti Eka Putri, S.P. NIDN.100506820		

This thesis is submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the Degree of Sarjana of Education in Islamic University of Riau.

Pekanbaru, 1 May 2020 Vice Dean A ademic Dr. Sri Amnah, S.Pd., M.Si NIP.1970100719980322002 NIDN: 0007107005

Dokumen ini adalah Arsip Milik : Perpustakaan Universitas Islam Riau

THESIS

AN ANALYSIS OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE PREWRITING STRATEGIES USED BY STUDENTS IN WRITING ESSAY IN UNIVERSITAS ISLAM RIAU

Name Student Number Study Program Faculty	: Nadia Haudina : 146310273 : English Language : Teacher Training a	
	HE CANDIDATE HA MONDAY, 20	S BEEN EXAMINED APRIL 2020
Head Advisor	e -	Vice Advisor
<u>Dra.Hj.Syofianis</u> NIDN. 002304590		<u>Yulianto, SPd.,M.Pd</u> NIDN. 1018076901
Examiner 1	PEKANBA	Examiner 2
Prof. Dr. Seno Hin NIDN. 102508670		Miranti Eka Putri., S.Pd., M.Pd. NIDN. 1005068201 ner 3
	Fauzul Etfita., NIDN. 103	

This Thesis is submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the Degree of Sarjana of Education in Islamic University of Riau.

Pekanbaru, 11 May 2020 Vice Dean of Academic

Dr. Sri Amnah., Pd., MSi NIP. 197010071998032002 NIDN. 0007107005

LETTER OF NOTICE

We, the Head Advisor and Vice Advisor here by notify that:

Name : Nadia Haudina

Student Number : 146310273

Study Program : English Language Education

Faculty

: Teacher Training and Education

Has completely written a thesis which entitled:

AN ANALYSIS OF <mark>ENGLISH LANGUAGE PREWRITING STRATE</mark>GIES USED BY STUDENTS IN WRITING ESSAY IN UNIVERSITAS ISLAM RIAU

It is ready to be examined. This letter is made to be used as it is needed.

Pekanbaru, 11 May 2020

Head Advisor

Me

Dra.Hj.Syofianis Ismail, M.Ed

NIDN. 0023045901

Vice Advisor

Yulianto, S.Pd., M.Pd

NIDN. 1018076901

THESIS GUIDANCE AGENDA

: Nadia Haudina

: 146310273

Thesis guidance has been implemented to:

Name

Student Number

Study Program

Faculty

Head Advisor

Title

English Language Education
Teacher Training and Education
Dra. Hj. Syofianis Ismail, M.Ed
An Analysis of English Language Prewriting Strategies Used by Students in Writing Essay in

Universitas Islam Riau

No	Date	Guidance Agenda	Signature
1	August, 17th 2017	Chapter I	AR
2	December, 19th 2018	Revised Chapter II	- Ch
3	February, 12th 2019	Revised Chapter III	CB-
4	March, 5th 2019	Acc to Join Seminar	a de
5	April, 15th 2019	Seminar Proposal	ah
6	May, 24th 2019	Revised Chapter I and II	- CE
7	Oct, 16th 2019	Revised III and IV	
8	December, 18th 2019	Revised IV	Copyl
9	December, 28th 2019	Checked All Chapters	And
10	January, 2th 2020	Acc to Join Thesis Examination	Ahen

Pekanbaru, 11 May 2020

The Vice Dean of Academic Dr. Sri Amnan, S.Pd., M.Pd NIP. 197010071998032002

NIDN. 0007107005

DECLARATION

This under signed researcher:

Name	: Nadia Haudina

Index Number : 146310273

Place/Date of Birth : Pekanbaru, January 12th 1996

Faculty : FKIP-UIR

Department

: English S1

I have by declare that the work in this thesis is my own, except for the quotations, had been put in references.

Pekanbaru, 11 May 2020

The Researcher

NADIA HAUDINA

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Alhamdulillahirabbilalamin. In the name of Allah, the most gracious and merciful. The researcher would like to express the sincere gratitude to Allah SWT for all blessing and guidence so that researcher could finished the thesis entitle: **"An Analysis of English Language Prewriting Strategies Used by Students in Writing Essay in Universitas Islam Riau"**. This thesis has completed to fulfill one of the requirements for the award of Sarjana Degree in English Education.

Therefore, the researcher rendered a lot of thanks and put her in high appreciation for those who helped her from the beginning up to the end of the research, especially to:

- 1. A lot of thanks for my beloved parents, Papa H. Yusnandar and Mama Hj. Desneli. Also my family; my brother bang Yose Rinaldo, bang Deniel Mazona, sister-in-law kak Tuti Yulastri, and kak Nur Fitriani, my two nieces; Zola Febrianti, and Lizi Elifa Mazona who always gave me support and pray every time when I got lack and down of motivation instead. I cannot find any other way to explain how much love you have given. I do not even what I would do without my best family.
- Mrs. Dra. Hj. Syofianis Ismail., M.Ed. as my head advisor, and Mr. Yulianto., S.Pd., M.Pd. as my vice advisor who always contribution as a lot of time to giving me informations, revisions, suggestions, and

guidence me in completing this thesis. Thank you so much to both of you.

- Mrs. Dr. Sri Amnah, S.Pd., M.Pd. as the vice dean of academic of Teacher Training and Education faculty, who gave me support and encourangements to finish the thesis.
- 4. Mrs. Miranti Eka Putri, S.Pd., M.Ed. as a head of English Study Program.
- Gratitude is offered for all of the lecturers of FKIP UIR Pekanbaru and staffs especially English lecturers, who always give me more knowledge and information also guidence me so well.
- 6. I offered gratitude for the second semester students, class B for being participant in my research. Thank you so much.
- Thank you for Muthia Sari Fatimah, S.Pd. as my mentor and support me in my thesis, and give me motivation. Thank you so much, Muthek. I love you so much.
- 8. Special thanks to Tegar Bagas Mahan as a chairman of B class who always gave me information about my research questionnaire, Javier Ferdano as a friend who gave me advice when I was down, Rizky Ariandra as a friend who gave me suggestion about my thesis. Thank you so much for your kindness.

9. The last for my Girls Squad (Afni, Nabila, and Eny), Keluarga Cemara (Reggy and Febe), Retjeh Family and Telolet Family. Thank you for your support. I really love you, guys. Thank you so much.



ABSTRACT

Nadia Haudina, 2019, An Analysis of English Language Prewriting Strategies Used by Students in Writing Essay in Universitas Islam Riau.

Keyword : Prewriting, Prewriting Strategies, Writing Essay

The objective of the research is to know what strategy that students' used in prewriting step in writing essay and to know the dominant strategy that students' used in writing essay to transfer an idea.

The research design of this study was descriptive research. The participant of this research was B class in semester 4 year 2017 English Department in Universitas Islam Riau. The sample of this research was used cluster sampling and there were 38 students as the sample. The instruments of the research were questionnaire. There were contain listing 10 questions, free writing 9 questions, clustering 9 questions, looping 7 questions, journal's questions 7 questions, and cubing 11 questions. The data were analyzed by categorize the data based on indicators, describe the data and make a conclusion.

From the results, 8 students used listing as their strategy in writing essay, 6 students used freewriting as their strategy, 8 students used looping, 1 student used clustering as their strategy, 13 students used journal's questions as their strategy, and 2 students used cubing as their strategy in writing essay. Then, the dominant strategy that students used in prewriting was journal's questions (34,2%), which is students found the information of the topic to get an outline by using 5W + 1H.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	i
LIST OF TABLES	iii
LIST OF FIGURES	iv
CHAPTER I. INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background of the Problem	1
1.2 Identification of the Problem	4
1.3 Focus of the Problem	4
1.4 Research Questions	4
1.5 Objective of the Research	5
1.6 Significance of the Research	5
1.7 Definition of the Key Terms	6
CHAPTER II. REVIEWED OF RELATED LITERATURE	7
2.1 Relevance Theories.	7
2.1.1 The Nature of Writing	7
2.1.2 The Writing Process	9
2.1.3 Pre-Writing Strategy	1
a. Listing	1

b. Free Writing	15
c. Looping	16
d. Clustering	16
e. Journal's Question	17
f. Cubing	18
2.1.4 The Characteristics of Pre-Writing Strategy	19
2.1.5 The Nature of Essay	20
2.1.5 The Genres of Essay	21
a. Expository Essay	22
b. Narrative Essay	24
c. Comparison and Contrast Essay	27
d. Cause and Effect Essay	29
e. Argumentative Essay	32
2.2 Relevance Studies	35
2.3 Conceptual Framework	36
2.4 Assumption	38
CHAPTER III. RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	39
3.1 Research Design	39
3.2 Source of Data	39
3.2.1. Population	39
3.2.2. Sample	40

3.2.3. Instruments	41
3.2.3.1. Questionnaire	41
3.3 Data Collection Technique	42
3.4 Data Analysis Technique	44
CHAPTER IV RESEARCH FINDINGS	45
4.1 Data Description	45
4.1.1 Listing	45
4.1.2 Free Writing	50
4.1.3 Looping	54
4.1.4 Clustering	57
4.1.5 Journal's Questions	61
4.1.6 Cubing	64
4.2 Data Analysis	69
4.2.1 Self-Assestment.	69
4.2.1.1 Listing	70
4.2.1.2 Freewriting	74
4.2.1.3 Looping	79
4.2.1.4 Clustering	82
4.2.1.5 Journal's Question	86
4.2.1.6 Cubing	89
4.2.1.7 Dominantly Prewriting Strategies Used	95
4.2.1.8 Dominantly Strategies Used	97

CHAPTER V CONCLUSIONS AND SUGGESTIONS	99
5.1 Conclusions	99
5.2 Suggestions	100
5.2.1 For Lecturer	100
5.2.2 For Students	101
5.2.3 For Further Research	101
REFERENCES	102



LIST OF TABLES

Table 2.1 Characteristics of Prewriting Strategy	19
Table 3.2 Population of the Research	40
Table 3.3 Indicators of Questionnaire of Pre-Writing Strategy	42
Table 4.1.1 The Total Answers of Questionnaire in Listing	46
Table 4.1.2 The Total Answers of Questionnaire in Free Writing	50
Table 4.1.3 The Total Answers of Questionnaire in Looping	54
Table 4.1.4 The Total Answers of Questionnaire in Clustering	57
Table 4.1.5 The Total Answers of Questionnaire in Journal's Questions	61
Table 4.1.6 The Total Answers of Questionnaire in Cubing	64
Table 4.2.1 Total Percentage Answer of Listing Questionnaire	71
Table. 4.2.2 Total Percentage Answer of Free Writing Questionnaire	75
Table 4.2.3 Total Percentage Answer of Looping Questionnaire	79
Table 4.2.4 Total Percentage Answer of Clustering Questionnaire	83
Table 4.2.5 Total Percentage Answer of Journal's Questions Questionnaire	87
Table 4.2.6 Total Percentage Answer of Cubing's Questionnaire	91
Table 4.2.7 Percentage of Students' Pre-Writing Strategies used	95
Table 4.2.8 Percentage of Strategy Dominant Used	97

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.1 Listing	15
Figure 2.2 Free Writing	15
Figure 2.3 Looping	16
Figure 2.4 Clustering	17
Figure 2.5 Journal's Question	17
Figure 2.6 Cubing	18
Figure 2.7 Conceptual Framework	37



LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Self-Assestment Questionnaire	107
Appendix 2 The Answers of Students' Questionnaire in Prewriting	114
Appendix 3 Pictures of Respondents 4B Class years 2017	151



CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background of the Problem

Writing is one of the skills in communication. People can share about information, ideas, and opinion in writing. Writing is a must to be mastered by all students in every educational level. In higher educational or university, writing is the main activities that students always do during the day of lecturing, like taking notes and make some assignments. Also, writing also takes important parts in students' future life especially to communicate formally.

In language learning, writing skills is divided into several levels. At English department of Islamic University of Riau, writing skill has three levels according to the 2013's curriculum. It is divided into paragraph, essay, and academic writing. Paragraph writing starts from how to make a small paragraph. After the students can write a good paragraph, they will continue to develop the paragraphs into a paragraph that how to share their ideas in writing. Then, they will learn about academic writing, which making more complex paragraphs. Finally, they learn how to make a proposal or thesis for final project to finish their study in Strata one degree. Different levels help students to improve their skill in writing.

In each level, lecturer will give strategy to make them understand how to write easier. Although students use the strategy which the lecture gives to them, they still had a problem. Based on researcher's experience as English student, the biggest problem in writing is students hard to do prewriting, because they are too lazy to find an idea. In prewriting, students must search an idea by their own words to be written as an essay; consequently, they must read many sources that they can get from journal, articles, or books. In summary, the problem is they cannot understand what the text they read.

Another problem in writing is students' habit which they do not like to brainstorm idea. They always make it based on other people's idea. Because of the habit, they will hard to understand the material and write something. Furthermore, students only get some idea by their own mind and sometimes doing a plagiarism.

For developing the habit, in teaching writing, the lecturer already gives many strategies. One of them is prewriting strategy that is used in writing an essay. The lecturer gives the strategy to the students to help them understand the text they read, and the students using a strategy to take an important idea from the sources. After taking an idea, the lecturer asks the students to write it an essay. Here comes a problem, when they start to write, they cannot develop the idea they already collected from reading. Sometimes, they do not transfer their idea from reading to writing. Even though the students are already read the books, journals or articles, the idea still cannot come up. They only put some ideas without evidence. Unfortunately, they cannot summary and explain their ideas that they had read before they write it into the essay. The result is, their essays are lack of ideas, and then the points in the essay are not clearly stated and elaborated. That's why prewriting strategy was chosen as the step of essay in this research. The subject which the researcher chooses is prewriting strategy that contains several of strategies that students will use in writing essay. In reality, based on the researcher's experience, contain of essay was only from mind. Even the students already read related sources, the idea still cannot come up. As a result, without using prewriting strateiges, their writing essay is lack of ideas, and the points in the essay are not clearly stated and elaborated. That is why prewriting strategies is chooses as the subject in this research, because it will make the student easier to generate a lot of ideas and avoid them from lack of points in their essay.

Based on the problems above, the researcher is interested in analyzing students' strategy used in their writing an essay. Whether, they include the idea of the source text which they read before writing an essay, or they do the plagiarism because of lack of idea. The researcher chooses second year students of English Department because they already learned about writing essay. Later on, they will learn academic writing which needs more information from what they had been easily without having difficulties in developing an idea. They can use the idea which they get from the source text into their writing idea to support their idea. Therefore, the researcher will analyze what the strategy that students use to transfer their idea into their writing an essay.

1.2 Identification of the Problem

Based on the background, there were three possible problems that could be identified. First, students are too lazy to think and find a lot of ideas and also cannot understand what the text they read in writing an essay. Secondly, students do not like to brainstorm idea and they write an idea without evidence in writing an essay. Third, students cannot look for a reference. They just put some ideas from their mind and summary it before they write an essay. Finally, it makes their essay became lack of ideas and had not clearly and elaborated points.

1.3 Focus of the Problem

Based on what has been described, this research focuses on analysis of English language prewriting strategies used by students in writing essay in fourth semester. The researcher wants to know students prewriting strategies used by students and know the dominant strategy that students used in writing an essay in Universitas Islam Riau.

1.4 Research Questions

Based on the focus on the problem above, there were some research questions as follow:

1. What are the strategies used by the second year of English students prewriting step in writing an essay?

2. What strategy is dominantly used by the second year students in prewriting step in writing an essay?

1.5 Objective of the Research

Based on the research questions above, the objective of this research were:

- 1. To know what strategy that students' used in prewriting step in writing an essay.
- 2. To know the dominant strategy that students' used in prewriting step in writing an essay to transfer an idea.

1.6 Significance of the Research

Practically, the result of this research will enrich information about students' strategy in doing writing an essay, even though the students use many strategies in writing an essay or not. Finally, the result of the research would show whether prewriting strategy would help them in adding the idea to write an essay. Theoretically, this result of the research will teach the students to generate a lot of ideas in writing. Prewriting strategy can make them summaries an idea based on their own words without do a plagiarism. Last, the researcher hopes it will be useful as a reference for the further research.

1.7 Definitions of the Key Terms

This is the definitions of the key terms that are used in the thesis in order to help the readers understand about the research. The terms are as follows:

- 1. Writing is an activity that organizing some people's opinion into meaningful written text.
- 2. **Prewriting Strategy** is the process of planning and organizing of ideas before composing a first draft by several strategies.
- 3. Essay is a part that can be practiced to develop several skills and increase students' creativity in writing.



CHAPTER II

REVIEW OF RELATED LITERATURE

2.1 Relevance Theories

The relevance theories of this research consist of the nature of writing, writing process, prewriting strategy, characteristics of prewriting strategy, writing essay and the genres of writing essay.

2.1.1 The Nature of Writing

Writing is an activity that involves many intregated skills, such as organizing available resources and evidence and generating ideas and arguments. Writing can be used as a media to communicate the others. In writing, people can express their feelings, ideas, and opinions to everyone, whether they know each other or not. It means that people not only can share their feelings, ideas, and opinions by speaking directly to the target person, but they can also do it indirectly in writing form. Also, writing can increase people's skills in generate some ideas into a complex paragraphs.

Writing has many definitions which were explained by many experts. According to Hyland (2003) explains writing seems like a product constructed from the writer's mind and their experiences with the text. It means writer will combine their mind with knowledge. Knowledge can be found by reading something or hear something. Basically, Hyland tries to say that writing is a product of the combination between the writer's minds with others' which is found by many ways. Another definition of writing skill is also defined by Peha (2010), states that writing is the communication of content for a purpose to an audience. Therefore, writing contains the content then it processes by giving the ideas into the words from articles, books, etc., and published to the public.

Harmer (2007) states that writing is the process of producing something from the writer to its final form that is affected by the content like the subject matter or the type of writing by using the media. In short, the expert says that writing is a process which comes from creating the writer's idea and the others into a written form by combined another idea or point into the information. Furthermore, Nunan (2003) defines writing as both physical and mental acts. Writing is the physical act of committing words or ideas and writing is also the mental work of investing ideas, thinking of how to express them and organizing them into statements or paragraphs that will give a clear meaning to the readers. The writer is able to know whether they had made a correct written product by the indication of understanding that the readers show.

In conclusions, there are so many definitions of writing, which are proposed by the experts. They had a different focus on defining what writing is. Although the focus in defining it has so many variations, it can be concluded that writing is a process of making the words into the meaningful message which contains feelings, ideas, or opinions about something. Writing is also an indirect communication the writer through several stages of revising or evaluating in a paper. Furthermore, this message is published to the public so the readers can read the message.

2.1.2 The Writing Process

There are many definitions of writing process. According to Brown (2001) states that writing contains the result of thinking, organizing, drafting, and revising that can produce a final product. It means that writing develops idea step by step to become an information that ready to be read for reader, like essay, articles, books, reports, or journals that product should look like.

Hammond (2007) explains the process of writing consist of four stages that is planning or prewriting, drafting, revising, and publishing. The planning should begin not with the topic analysis but with information. It then continues with interpretation that writer wants to pass on. Once writer find the information, it becomes to inferences from the information. In drafting, the writer puts the materials and purposes of the text, then produce into a sentence. Revising is how the writer organizes a draft into the paper, and then continues with changes in the writer's first written sentence from rereading or rewriting information. In the last stage, that is publishing. The writer ready to check spelling, punctuation, grammar, and neatness, then share their work with others.

Furthermore, Richards and Renandya (2002) states there are many steps in writing process. Planning is an activity that encourages writer to write. Students do this first step before they start to write by brainstorming, freewriting, and WH questions to gather ideas. Secondly is drafting, which is the writer arranges they already write in planning stage on a paper. In this stage, spelling rules are ignored and try to create a text. Revising is the student's written review from rearrange the content, then expand the text with new ideas or remove the inappropriate parts.

Based on the definition above, it can be concluded that writing is a process of several steps to produce a product which comes from student's mind and others sources. In order to write a good writing, students need to follow several steps which already explained by many experts above. The steps which students need to follow will help students to pour the idea from their mind and the source text which they read. Here are the explanations about several steps in writing;

Planning or prewriting is the first stage. Students start by thinking about what they want to say and finding the ideas to write about. In this stage, students can find out many sources to get an idea which will develop in their draft. Students can read, surf on the internet, or do some interview. This stage helps student to collect many ideas from their mind and others. Then, students will list it which idea will be the main idea and the rest idea will be the supporting detail.

Drafting is the next stage. In this stage, students start to write based on the idea which already arrange by them. Students will start to write and develop the idea which already written in their outline. The idea can be elaborated by using students' opinion. Without drafting, the students cannot be independent without planning stages. Writing without others ideas, it will be the lack of information essay. On the other hand, students' essay without others supporting will lead students' to generalization of an essay. So, supporting details after an opinion is really needed because without the supporting of opinion, the opinion will become weak. Then, reader will lose their interest to read students' essay.

After students finish in their drafting stage, students will come to the next stage, revising. After students create their draft, they should revise their draft. This process can be done by using others' help. Students can ask their friend to see which idea is not appropriate, or the structure of their draft is still in the wrong structure. Revising can be done by using self-revision, but sometimes, the revising will lead the students into the same problem. That is why doing revision is quite good. Students can use what others suggest, and if the suggestion is not relate to the idea, students can stand on their own. Students should do these step to improve their draft become the great writing product. After get many suggestion and comment about the draft, it is time for students to edit their draft based on what they get. Students can choose what they will use in their new draft which will become the essay, final product.

2.1.3 Prewriting Strategy

We know that prewriting is a first stage in writing process. Prewriting is the process of planning and organization of ideas before composing a first draft by several strategies. It means that prewriting is the process of developing the ideas before drafting a document. Also, according to Cameron (2008), prewriting always used by students as the first step in making an essay as follows:

- Prewriting can help you think. It means that prewriting can make the writer to putting the ideas on the paper or computer that help collect and develop ideas.
- 2. Prewriting can help the writer has clear writing. It helps them to come up with ideas, organize those ideas, and develop a plan for the paper that will lead to a well-structured writing assignment.
- 3. Prewriting can save the time. If the essay is better organized in the first draft, it can save the time when the writer wants to edit the paper.
- 4. Prewriting can produce better writing. It pushes the writer to think and generate support for their ideas to had a better piece of writing.

There are many strategies that used in prewriting step in writing essay. Cameron (2008) said that prewriting strategies consist of listing, freewriting, and clustering. Listing is a strategy for exploring the ideas that you can think about writer's topic. The writer can include the questions that they had about the topic. If writer gets stuck, they can go back to one of the idea and elaborate it, then ask the questions about the ideas to help writer generates other ideas. Freewriting is a second strategy to write the topic at the top of page without worry about spelling, punctuation, grammar, or corrections. If writer reaches a point or the idea, they must reread again and underline any parts that might be useful to the paper. Then, it can be turned into a paragraph or an outline for the essay. Clustering is the writer write the topic in one or a few words in the center of the page. Then, they go to circling each word, grouping words around the central word, or connecting them to whatever word that they think of about the topic.

Furthermore, Urquhart and McIver (2005) said that prewriting strategies consist of freewriting and brainstorming. In addition, Harrison (2009) states that prewriting strategies divided into brainstorming or listing, clustering, freewriting, and journalist's questions. Here, Harrison adds journalist's questions in his prewriting strategy. In journalist's questions contain of 5W 1H questions that writer wants to ask of the topic, and for their future readers will be seeking answers. The process of answering the Who, What, Where, When, Why and How may be a part of an outlining process of creating topic areas for continued work.

Looping is also a prewriting strategy. According to Baroudy (2008) states that looping is prewriting technique that similar with freewriting. Writer is strictly required to write freely on a specific topic without care about grammar or punctuation. After writer do a freewriting, they underlining or circling the ideas and write it to other papers as a first loop, second loop, third and more. As a result, some focused idea can be used as the outline and ready to be analyzed, generate or develop it as an essay.

Cahyono (2012) defines that cubing is one of another step in prewriting strategy. He said that cubing is a technique in writing whose application was inspired by the shape of a cube which has six sides. Thus, cubing can be used to write an ordinary thing and a complex idea. In addition, Baroudy (2008) introduces six concepts in cubing, as follows: (1). describe it: it is telling what the writers or people think about the topic; (2). compare it: it is finding the similarity

and differences between the topic or the objects to some others; (3). associate it: it is finding the correlation between topic or object with others; (4). analyze it: it is writing about how the topic can be done or happen; (5). apply it: it is writing about how to use and do the topic; and (6). argue for it or against it: it is giving justification for positive or negative stance on a topic. Therefore, cubing technique is a technique that students consider, learn, develop and write a subject from different instruction in six angles of a cube, namely describing, comparing, associating, analyzing, applying and arguing for.

Based on the definition above, it can be concluded that prewriting can help the students to thinking and putting the ideas become an outline. Then, the outline can be developed into an essay without waste a time. If the essay is better organized, it can rewrite them into a paper and lastly will be published with a full of information based on the topic. To making a good essay, students will use a strategy that can be used in their prewriting step as follows:

a. Listing

This step can help students thinking about the topic by write down anything about the topic, but just an idea or point. After that, the group of ideas that students already listed become an outline. If the outline better organized, arrange and rewrite it into a sentence of the group of ideas. Then, the result is students get a potential topic sentence or thesis statement on the paper. This strategy works well in several venues (alone, partner, or as a groups). Also, this strategy makes it ideal prewriting techniques for myriad situations.



b. Freewriting

Freewriting is the next step. This step will give the students to write anything. Students do not worry about spelling, grammar, etc. during write the ideas. Students will reach a point without stop to writing. After that, read over what they had written and find any parts that students think had interesting ideas that might be useful and generate it into the sentence and write that to the paper. In this strategy, students only focus on a specific topic during writing the ideas. Students will get many ideas that can be used to the outline for the essay.



Figure 2.2 Freewriting

c. Looping

Looping is a free-writing technique that allows students to increasingly focus their ideas by do a free-writing rapidly. After they do a free-writing, they circling or looping another interesting topic, idea, phrase, or sentence that they find interesting. After they had finished some rounds of looping, they will begin to had specific information or an outline from what they are thinking about a particular topic.



Figure 2.3 Looping

d. Clustering

Clustering, also called the mind mapping is a diagram of a relationship of the points or ideas in specific topic. Students will write the topic in a few words in the center of page. Then, students will circling, grouping, or connecting each word around the central word. The result will look like a bubble cluster, a web spider or tree diagram underlines central ideas. Clustering helps students to explore and expand the ideas to become an outline and develop it into an essay.



e. Journal's Questions

Journal's questions are a step that students use by answering the questions below about the following prompt. Students will answer six questions when they are writing an essay. When they using the journalists' questions, students will flexible enough to create and generate the ideas for their topic. Then, students can use the questions to explore the topic that students writing about for their outline.

a production of the second sec				
Provide a	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	A 14	
1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1			1	_
	\ <u></u>	110-5	Pro 1	-
Ek	V 1		1	

who?	are the participants, the primary topics, the secondary topics?
What?	is the significance of the topic, the basic problem, the issues?

- Where? does it take place, is the source, the meeting of cause and effect?
- When? is the issue most apparent, historical forces, etc.?
 - Why? is it a problem or issue, why did it develop as it did?
 - How? can it be addressed or resolved?

Figure 2.5 Journal's Questions (Adapted from Kansas University,

www.writing.ku.edu)

f. Cubing

Cubing is a technique to searching, analyze, generate, or developing a problem from 6 perspectives. For the feature or concept, students are trying to understand:

- 1. **Describe it:** Telling what the writers or people think about the topic.
- 2. Compare it: Finding the similarity and differences between the topic or the objects.
- 3. Associate it: Finding the correlation between topic or object.
- 4. Analyze it: Writing about how the topic can be done or happen.
- 5. Apply it: Writing about how to use and do the topic.
- 6. Argue for it or against it: Giving opinion for positive or negative sides on a topic.



Figure 2.6 Cubing (Adopted from Cahyono, 2012 p.45)

2.1.4 The Characteristics of Prewriting Strategy

As the researcher explains before, prewriting strategy is a first way in writing to developing some ideas into an outline. Also, this strategy can help students in writing an essay. Mogahed (2013) states that prewriting is an activities that can help students plan and organize their stories and help reluctant writers find the motivation to write. It gives the students ideas as the first step to write something. For sure, a good strategy will lead the students into a good writing.

Furthermore, there are several characteristics of a good prewriting strategy:

Listing	Freewriting	Looping	Clustering	Journal's Question	Cubing
 Begin to generating ideas about a broad topic. Write down as many ideas based from the topic as you can. Group the items that you had listed that make sense to you. Write a sentence from the groups of ideas as a topic sentence. 	Write as many ideas as fast as you can. Also, just writing without worrying about grammar, spelling, or another mistakes.	After write many ideas, loop it or circling interesting topic, idea, phrase, or sentence each time. After that, you will begin to had the information that from what you are thinking about the topic.	 Start in write the main idea in the center and draw a circle around it. Write the ideas as you can in circles around the main cirle. Connect or grouping the ideas to main circle using lines. 	Starting by answering the what, who, when, where, why, and how questions to find a lot of ideas.	 Choose a three- dimensional object, for example: cube. Place the object in front of you and write a lot of ideas. Turn the object and write again a lot of ideas. Keep turn around the object and write until you had six aspects written of ideas.

Table 2.1 The Characteristics of Prewriting Strategy (adapted from several

research)
For sure, prewriting strategy is very helpful for students. It helps students to get the idea from text which is already read by the student. Also, Mogahed (2013) said that prewriting activities not only help students acquire the target language more effectively, but they build interpersonal, thinking, and planning skills that can be utilized in other fields. It is because students can get the ideas easily without having to read the whole journal or book again.

2.1.5 The Nature of Essay

Essays are everywhere, like in books, magazines, newspaper, etc. Essay usually has three to ten paragraphs. Each paragraph discusses one idea, and it related to the topic of the whole essay. That is why essay is important to the readers that want to know about the information of the topic in daily life.

Essay has a many definitions. According to Baker (2015), essay are shorter pieces of writing to hone a number of skill such as close reading, analysis, compare and contrast, persuasion, concise, describe, and exposition. Essay is a commonly assigned writing that every student will make it in university. Also, essay can be a planning and practice as a testor homework to gain a bit students' creativity. It means that essay is a part of writing that can be practiced to develop some skills. Thus, essay can be the one of the training to make the students' creativity will be increase.

Furthermore, Oshima and Hogue (2006) state that essay is a piece of writing several paragraphs long. It is about one topic, just as a paragraph is because the topic of an essay is too complex to discuss in one paragraph and you need to divide it into several paragraph. It means that essay is not only focuses on one paragraph, but focuses to several paragraphs in each major in the topic.

Refnaldi (2010) states that essay are a printed material that contains of a several paragraphs. Each paragraphs of the essay discusses one idea, often stated in the topic sentence of the paragraph. The topic sentence of the paragraph can be located anywhere, but the most common place is at the beginning of the paragraph. It means that essay is also a short collection of paragraphs that present many ideas and combine it into a several sentences on some topics.

Based on the definition above, it can be concluded that essay is a part of writing that presents many topic sentence in each paragraph on the topic. Also, essay can trains the students to develop their skill and increases their creativity in writing.

2.1.6 The Genres of Essay

Writing cannot be separated from the genre of essay. Types related to tone, purpose, and style of writing. That's why when someone writes something, it must had the tone, purpose and the style of their writing. That is why essay need students' effort in writing. Students need to search the facts and others opinion to support their arguments in the essay. There are many genres in writing essay. The genres in writing an essay are:

a. Expository Essay

According to Baker (2015), expository essay is a genre of essay that requires the student to investigate an idea, evaluate evidence, expound on the idea, and set an argument concerning to the topic. In addition, Refnaldi (2010) states that expository are a factual text to explain the processes involved in the evolution of natural phenomena. It means that expository is a method that presents other people's views, or reports an event or a situation. Expository writing presents a subject in detail apart from criticism, argument, or development. The purpose of an expository essay is to present, completely and fairly, the views of others.

The generic structures of this essay are (Chin, 2011):

1) Introduction; the first paragraph of an essay should introduce the reader to the topic. It should create interest in the essay, outline the writer's main ideas, and suggest how these ideas will be presented within the body of the essay. The introduction consists of three main elements:

- Hook; The first sentence (or sentences) of an essay should catch the reader's attention. It introduces the topic of the essay in an interesting way.
- **Building Sentences;** the following sentences should provide background information to give readers some context about the topic.
- Thesis Statement; comes at the end of the introduction. It is the most important sentence in the entire essay because it presents the essay topic and the writer's position on that topic. It also indicates the main ideas that will be discussed in the body paragraphs.

2) **Body**; each body paragraph explains in detail one of the main ideas expressed in the thesis statement. There are three parts to a body paragraph:

- **Topic Sentence**; expresses the topic of the paragraph and provides a controlling idea about the topic. All information in the paragraph supports the controlling idea.
- Supporting Sentences; explain and develop the topic sentence. They present logical thoughts, evidence, and explanations in support of the controlling idea.
- **Concluding;** the paragraph may end with a concluding thought on the paragraph topic. It may also show a transition to the next paragraph.

3) Conclusion; ends the essay by reviewing the main ideas from each body paragraph and leaving the reader with a final thought. The conclusion consists of three elements:

- **Restated Thesis;** at the start of the conclusion, the thesis is restated in words different from those in the introduction.
- Summary of Main Ideas; the main ideas from each of the body paragraphs are summarized as a reminder to the reader.
- Final; ends the essay by presenting a final on the topic for example, by stating an opinion, a solution, or a prediction. The final thought should leave a strong impression and encourage the reader to think further about the topic.

Furthermore, the guidelines of expository essay can be described as follows (Baker, 2015):

- 1. Take time to brainstorm; if the writer has a topic, try writing any ideas around the topic. For instance: if the writer chooses fried rice, the writer might start writing a few words: rice, onion, ketchup, egg, salt, spicy, cheap, mienas, etc. Once writer has written down some words, then writer can begin by compiling descriptive lists for each one.
- 2. Use clear and concise language; the words are chosen carefully in particular for their relevancy in relation to that which writer is intending to describe.
- 3. Be organized; the topic must be explained and organized into the logical description with a cogent sense.
- 4. Leave the reader with a clear impression; one of the goals is to evoke a strong sense of familiarity and appreciation in the reader.

b. Narrative Essay

According to Anker (2009), narrative essays are typically about detailed experiences that the writer has faced in life. It is a story that is meaningful to the writer, which can be either real or imaginary. It means that writer will describe how a certain event changed a major part of the writer's life and how he or she reacted to the event. The main purpose of a narrative essay is to explain what happened, to prove something, or to entertain the reader. The generic structures of this essay are:

1) Introduction

- Hook; start your paper with a statement about your story that catches the reader's attention, for example: a relevant quotation, question, fact, or definition.
- Set the Scene; provide the information the reader will need to understand the story: who are the major characters? When and where is it taking place? Is it a story about story that happened to you, the writer, or is it fiction?
- Thesis Statement; a narrative thesis can begin the events of the story (e.g. "*It was sunny and warm out when I started down the path*"), offer a moral or lesson learned (e.g. "*I'll never hike alone again*"), or identifies a theme that connects the story to a universal experience (e.g. "*Journeys bring both joy and hardship*.").

2) Body

• "Show, Don't Tell"; good story telling includes details and descriptions that help the reader understand what the writer experienced. Think about using all five senses (not just sense of sight) to add details about what writer heard, saw, and felt during the event (e.g. "*My heart jumped as the dark shape of the brown grizzly lurched toward me out of the woods*" provides more information about what the writer saw and felt than, "*I saw a bear when I was hiking*").

- **Supporting Evidence;** in a personal narrative, your experience acts as the evidence that proves writer story. The events of the story should demonstrate the lesson learned, or the significance of the event.
- **Passage of Time;** writing about the events of writer's experience using time chronologically, from beginning to end, is the most common and clear way to tell a story. Whether the writer chooses to write chronologically or not, use transition words to clearly indicate to the reader what happened first, next, and last. Sometime transition words are *next, finally, during, after, when,* and *later.*

3) Conclusion; the conclusion of a narrative include the closing action of the event, but also should include some reflection or analysis of the significance of the event to the writer. What lesson did the writer learn? How has what happened to the writer affected writer's life now?

Furthermore, the guidelines of narrative essay can be described as follows (Baker, 2015):

- 1. The essay should include all the parts of story; this means that writer musts include an introduction, plot, characters, setting, climax, and conclusion.
- 2. When would a narrative essay not be written as a story; this means that writer not necessarily follow the pattern of a story, and would focus on providing an informative narrative for the reader.
- 3. **The essay should had a purpose;** this means that writer musts make a point and think that as the one of a narrating story.

- 4. The essay should be written from a clear point of view; because in narrative, the events that writer include and the way he or she describe them is based on writer's point of view, whether it's first person, second person, or third person.
- 5. Use clear and concise language; the words are chosen carefully in particular for their relevancy in relation to that which writer are intending to describe.
- 6. **Be organize;** the topic must be explained and organized into the logical description with a cogent sense.

c. Comparison and Contrast Essay

According to Refnaldi (2010), comparison and contrast essay are two thought processes we constantly perform in academic subjects, and everyday life. This essay focuses on how two items or texts are similar, different, or similar in some ways and different in others. Also, the writer can also compare advantages or disadvantages of things, places, and ideas. It means that comparison and contrast is a method that explains the similarities and differences between two items. The purpose of comparison is to show how things, people, places, or ideas are similar, and the purpose of contrast is to show how people, places, things, or ideas are different.

The generic structures of this essay are:

1) **Introduction;** contains of thesis statement, the most important sentence in the entire essay because it presents the essay topic and the writer's position on that

topic. It also indicates the main ideas that will be discussed in the body paragraphs.

2) Body; there are three ways to organize the body of essay (Refnaldi, 2010). The first is *basic block* method, second is *block comparison* method, and third is *point-by-point* method.

• *Basic Block:* this method introduces the similarities between two objects and then the differences, or vice versa. The pattern is as follows:



• *Block Comparison:* this method describes one subject completely before writer come to the second subject. In the second subject, the writer needs to compare the current subject with the first one. The pattern is as follows:

Introduction — Thesis statement [Paragraph 1]

Body

Subject A [Paragraph 2]

Subject B

(similarities & differences) [Paragraph 3]

Conclusion — Restated thesis, opinion [Paragraph 4]

Point-to-Point: this method alternates arguments about two items (A and B) that writers are comparing or contrast. Writer presents both subjects under one point of comparison before moving to the next point. The pattern is as follows:



Furthermore, the guidelines of this essay based on Tardif and Klassen (2014) are:

- 1. Make an argument that contains critical analysis and not just a summary of how two things are similar or different.
- 2. An idea is simply an observation of similarity or difference; the statement of idea will be tell to the readers about two subjects and how the paragraph compares each option, and then suggests why it is significant to recognize the difference.
- 3. Using a transition words; compare or contrast is all about making connections between two or more different objects, transitional phrases are important to use when transitioning between objects and ideas. Transitions help readers to follow the discussion and keep track on how an argument progresses.

d. Cause and Effect Essay

According to Refnaldi (2010), cause and effect essay is a text about the relationship between something that happens and its consequences, or between actions and results. Cause-effect essays can be informative and insightful. The purpose of this essay is to inform about actions and results from a specific topic.

The generic structures of cause and effect essay are:

1) **Introduction;** the first paragraph of an essay should introduce the reader to the topic. It should create interest in the essay, outline the writer's main ideas, and suggest how these ideas will be presented within the body of the essay.

2) Body; there are two ways to organize the body of essay (Oshima and Hogue,2009). The first is *block organization*, and the second is *chain organization*.

Block Organization

In block organization, the causes (or reasons) are grouped together in one block, and the effects (or results) are grouped together in another block. A short paragraph often separates one major section to another section. This paragraph is called a transition paragraph (e.g. *also, in addition, and, likewise, first, second, third, moreover, furthermore, however, although, instead, even though,* etc.). It is purpose to conclude one section and introduce another section. This method is helpful when the topic is long and complex. This is the patterns of block-style:

Α	В
Introduction	Introduction
1 st cause	1 st cause
2 nd cause	Transition paragraph
3 rd cause	2 nd cause
Transition paragraph	3 rd cause
1 st effect	4 th cause
2 nd effect	Effects
Conclusion	Conclusion



• Chain Organization

The other organizational pattern that writer can use to write cause and effect is chain organization. In this pattern, causes and effects are linked to each other in a chain. One event causes a second event, which is turn causes a third event, which is turn causes a fourth event, and so on. Each new cause and its effect are links in a chain. This pattern is usually easier if the causes and effects are very closely interrelated.



Furthermore, the guidelines of this essay based on Refnaldi (2010) are:

 Distinguish between cause and effect; to determine causes, ask, "Why did this happen?" To identify effects, ask, "What happened because of this?" The following is an example of one cause producing one effect. For example:

> Cause: You are out of gas Effect: Your car won't start

- 2. Develop the thesis statement; state clearly whether the writer discussing causes, effects, or both. Introduce the main idea, and using the terms "cause" and/or "effect."
- 3. Find and organize supporting details; back up a thesis with relevant and sufficient details that are already organize.
- 4. Use appropriate transitions; to blend details smoothly in cause and effect essays, use the transitional words and phrases are listed below.

Causes: because, due to, on cause it, another is, since, for, first, second Effects: consequently, as a result, thus, resulted in, one result is, therefore.

e. Argumentative Essay

According to Anker (2009), argumentative is writing that takes a position on an issue and offers reasons and supporting evidence to convince someone else to accept, or at least consider, that position. Argument is also used to persuade someone to take or not to take an action. Oshima and Hogue (2006) states that argumentative is an essay in which writer agree or disagree with an issue. It means that argumentative is the method that try to persuade the reader to agree or disagree with writer's opinion about a controversial topic. The purpose of argumentative essay is to persuade someone to give a job, to buy something, to give more time to finish a task, or argue when something important is at stake, like keeping a job or protecting the rights.

The generic structures of this essay are based on Hyland (1990), Oshima and Hogue (2006):

1) Introduction; contains of thesis statement that introduces the preposition to be argued, including a summary of the other side's arguments.

Block Pattern	Point-to-Point Pattern
i. Introduction	i. Introduction
 ii. Body Block 1 a. Summary of other's side arguments b. Rebuttal to the first argument 	 ii. Body a. Statement of the other's side first argument and rebuttal with writer's counterargument
c. Rebuttal to the second argumentd. Rebuttal to the third argument	b. Statement of the other's side second argument and rebuttal with writer's counterargument
Block 2 e. Writer's first argument f. Writer's second argument g. Writer's third argument iii. Conclusion	c. Statement of the other's side third argument and rebuttal with writer's counterargument iii. Conclusion

2) Body; there are two patterns to make an argumentative essay:

• *Conclusion;* contains of restatement (rephrasing or repetition of proposition), claim for acceptance of the proposition (strength of perceived shared assumptions and a generalization based on data or evidence), and a summary of the writer's point of view.

Furthermore, the guidelines of this essay are (Baker, 2015):

- 1. A clear, concise, and defined thesis statement; this means that the writer must write a clear reason to support his or her position and explain why the topic is important or why readers should care about the issue.
- 2. **Clear and logical transitions;** this means that transition words are important to connect a clear and logical statement. Transitions should wrap up the idea from the previous section and introduce the idea to follow the next section. Without transition words, the reader is unable to follow the essay's argument and the structure will collapse.
- 3. Body paragraph that include evidential support; this is important that each paragraph in the body of essay must had some logical connection to the thesis statement in opening paragraph. The body of the argumentative essay should contain reliable, relevant, valid, factual, logical, statistical and anecdotal evidence or examples to support the writer's reason.
- 4. A conclusion contains of a complete argument; this means that writer must restate why the topic is important, review the main

points, and review the thesis. Therefore, the argumentative essay will be logical, possible, and leave a clear statement of the essay.

As mentioned above, there are many genres in writing an essay, so the researcher decides to conduct this research by asking students to fill the questionnaire. It is hoped when students fill the questionnaire, the strategy that the students used in prewriting in writing essay can be seen clearly. It is because there are six strategies in prewriting that students can use to make an outline before writing an essay. The idea cannot appear suddenly in their mind if they do not use one of the strategies to produce an idea.

2.2 Relevance Studies

Some researchers had completed the experiments on language teaching related to taking an idea from prewriting strategy. Most of preview researches were about the planning out prewriting activities, how prewriting strategies can benefit students, prewriting strategies and their effect on student writing and many others. Here are several researches which are related to this research;

Mogahed (2013) wrote about the term prewriting. The framework that he suggested is invention and arrangement. He found that prewriting activities need much practice for students to be good at writing. Thus, mastering prewriting facilitates the later stages of writing, such as drafting and revising, and encourages students to write more and more. In summary, Mogahed found that prewriting strategy help students find ideas and arrange their outline from source text into a clearly essay.

O'Mealia (2011) in her research, she examined the benefits of using strategy instruction during the prewriting stage of the writing process. The type of this research is action research, which take place in a small group setting in the home of the participants. She collected the data in questionnaire, writing samples, and observations. She found that prewriting strategies improves student writing in terms of content, organization, and voice, and also improves student's motivation and creativity towards writing. It means that prewriting can improve the students' ability and make them more creative to generate or develop the ideas from the source text to another sentence fluently in writing.

Servati (2012) found about prewriting strategies and their effect on student writing. The data was collected by teacher questionnaires, student work sampling, interviews, and field notes. In her research, Servati found that prewriting strategies can make students are capable of better quality writing if they already taught the appropriate strategies and given them enough time to write. However, it can be concluded that prewriting help the students to find an idea easily with the known strategies and develop the idea into an essay in a right time.

2.3 Conceptual Framework

Writing is seen as an activity in sharing ideas and thoughts in the written form. Students need to find the ideas in their writing. In order to get the ideas, they can use prewriting strategy to get it. The students can use many type of strategy, based on their interest, to get a first outline from source text such as textbooks, articles, journals, even magazines and newspaper.

This research is conducted to know students' prewriting step in transferring an idea in their writing an essay. Also, the researcher wants to know what strategy is dominantly used by the students. Before those questions are answered, researcher wants to know about students' strategy in prewriting to find an idea. There are six strategies to find an idea; *listing, freewriting, looping, clustering, journal's questions and cubing.* By using those strategies, researcher will know what strategy that students used, and how many strategy which student choose.

Based on the explanation above, researcher has framed the idea into conceptual framework as the following:



Figure 2.7 Conceptual Framework (Adapted from Muthia Sari Fatimah, 2017)

Based on the conceptual above, it can be seen that students do the prewriting to find an idea. They are free to choose the strategies which they do in prewriting. After students gather all of the ideas, the students get an outline from their prewriting. Researcher wants to know about which one the strategy that students use in prewriting to find an idea from the source text. Also, researcher will find out what strategy is dominantly used by the students' prewriting strategy in writing an essay.

2.4 Assumption

Based on the relevance studies, it can be seen that prewriting strategy in writing essay is helpful in building students critical thinking and creating the neat writing. In this research, the researcher will focus on what are the strategies used by students prewriting step in writing essay. In other words, this research has difference with the previous one. The researcher wants to find the dominantly strategy used in their prewriting step in writing essay. That is why researcher wants to know about it.

CHAPTER III

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 Research Design

According to Polit and Beck (2004) in Maboe (2009), research design is the overall plan for obtaining answers to the questions being studied and for handling some of the difficulties encountered during the research process. It means that research design is a detailed plan for how a research is conducted. This research uses a descriptive research because it describes about the of students' strategy used in prewriting step whether they use strategy or not in writing an essay. Gall et al. (2003) explains about descriptive, if the purpose is to study phenomena as they exist at one point in time. Moreover, Gay (1987) also explains that descriptive research determines and reports the way things are. It means that the descriptive research can determine and report the phenomenon of students' strategy used in prewriting step in writing an essay. Thus, this research used descriptive research design to describe student's prewriting strategies in their essay.

3.2 Source of Data

3.2.1 Population

According to Polit and Beck (2004) in Maboe (2009), population as the entire aggregation of cases that meet a designated set of criteria. It means that population is the total of group occupying in an area. Population of this research is the students who already learn about writing in English Department of Islamic University of Riau. There are four classes of English Teaching program. The members of the classes are listed as below:

Classes	Members
4A-2017	37
4B-2017	AMR 38
4C-2017	38
4D-2017	38
Total	151

Table 3.1 Second Year Students of English Department Islamic University of Riau

EKANBA

3.2.2 Sample

According to Gay (1987), sample is the process of selecting number of individuals for a study and represent the larger group from which they are selected. The researcher uses a cluster sampling. According to Gall et al. (2003) cluster sampling is a process of selecting a sample which naturally chooses a group of individual. This technique uses when it is more feasible to select a group of individual rather than individual of population. The technique also can be uses due to the same ability of students. B class is taking as the sample of this research. So, the sample of this research has 38 students member of B class.

3.2.3 Instruments

According to Wilkinson and Birmingham (2003), instruments are simply devices for obtaining information relevant to your research project. In this research, the instruments use questionnaire. The questionnaire uses to help students find the idea in writing an essay by using prewriting strategies.

3.2.3.1 Questionnaire

INTERSITAS ISLAM

According to Babbie (1990) in Acharya (2010), a questionnaire is defined as a document containing questions and other types of items designed to solicit information appropriate to analysis. It means that questionnaire uses to gain information in survey research of observations. The researcher gives 54 questions that contains about self assestment in use of writing strategies and distributes to 38 students in B class in English Department in Universitas Islam Riau. There were six strategies to make the idea. The strategies such as listing contains 10 questions, freewriting contains 9 questions, clustering contains 9 questions, looping contains 7 questions, journal's questions contains 7 questions, and cubing contains 11 questions.

3.3 Data Collection Technique

The data is collecting through students' questionnaire because researcher wants to know which strategy that students use to take an idea in prewriting. Then, their questionnaire will be analyze by the researcher in order to find the students' strategy in their prewriting to include in their essay. These result will answer the research questions in this research. Then, it helps the researcher know which the strategy that students use in prewriting step in writing essay. The most important thing here, students can find their ideal strategy which they consider as the strategy that they most use.

No.	Indicators of Prewriting Strategies	Sub In	dicators	Descriptions	Total Questions
1.	Self assestment toward listing.	a. Kan	Preparation before writing.	This is about how the students act before	3
	2	b.	The steps of prewriting.	writing. How students act during	3
		c.	Reactions after writing.	writing. How students' feels after writing.	3
2.	Self assestment toward freewriting.	a.	Preparation before writing.	This is about how the students act before writing.	3
		b.	The steps of prewriting.	How students act during writing.	3
		c.	Reactions after writing.	witting.	

				How students' feels after writing.	
3.	Self assestment toward looping.	a.	Preparation before writing.	This is about how the students act before writing.	3
	UNIVERS	b.	The steps of prewriting.	How students act during	1
		c.	Reactions after writing.	writing. How students' feels after writing.	3
4.	Self assestment toward clustering.	a.	Preparation before writing.	This is about how the students act before writing.	3
	2 PE	b.	The steps of prewriting.	How students act during	3
		c.	Reactions after writing.	writing. How students' feels after writing.	3
5.	Self assestment toward journal's questions.	a.	Preparation before writing.	This is about how the students act before	2
		b.	The steps of prewriting.	writing. How students act during writing.	2 3
		c.	Reactions after writing.	Writing. How students' feels after writing.	
6.	Self assestment toward	a.	Preparation	This is about	2

cubing.		before writing.	how the students act before writing.	
	b.	The steps of prewriting.	How students act during	6
	C.	Reactions after writing.	writing. How	3
2 UNIVE	RSITAS	ISLAM RIAL	students' feels after writing.	

Table 3.2 The Indicators of Questionnaire of Prewriting Strategies

3.4 Data Analysis Technique

The data will be analyze through the following steps.

- 1. Types of strategies which were used by students to find an ideas will be analyze by using the indicators of prewriting strategies.
- 2. To find out the percentage of what strategy dominantly used by students in prewriting into their essay by using the formula below:

$$P=\frac{F}{N}x100\%$$

Where:

P= Percentage

N= Total Number

F= Frequency of item

CHAPTER IV

RESEARCH FINDINGS

4.1 Data Description

The data of this research were taken from questionnaire given to second year students at fourth semester in B class towards observation in English Department of Universitas Islam Riau. The questionnaire were given as the instruments of data collection because the purpose of this research is to find out prewriting strategies and the dominantly strategy that students used in writing an essay. The total respondents is 38 students. The students were asked to fill the questionnaire which provided by researcher. The total of questions in the questionnaire is 54 questions, contains listing 10 questions, freewriting 9 questions, looping 7 questions, clustering 9 questions, journal's question number 1. The results were analyzed by using the table of indicators and the formula to get the dominantly prewriting strategy used in writing an essay by students.

The researcher analyzed students' questionnaire in use of prewriting strategies. After analyzing students's questionnaire, based on the table could be found the results of students' strategy used in prewriting in writing an essay.

4.1.1 Listing

Listing is the step that students making an idea by write down a list of point of ideas in the topic. In this research, researcher find the number of students by counting each question in the statement at each point. The table below contains of the total students' answer in each point of listing's self assestment questionnaire.

No	Number of question	Answer				
	9-100	1	2	3	4	5
1	I plan out first what I want to write	SLAM	5	13	10	8
2	I organize my ideas prior to writing	- 6	9	8	15	6
3	I make a list before writing	1	10	16	10	1
4	I brainstorm and discussing to my friend before I begin to write		6	14	10	7
5	I prepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary items	2	3	19	11	3
6	If I lack the right word, I use a dictionary to help me writing an idea	I	3		13	10
7	I use a dictionary after I finish writing a draft	4	2	14	14	4
8	Listing helps me to me organize my writing	2	3	14	13	6
9	Listing helps me gain more confidence in writing	1	1	15	14	7
10	Listing helps me to be a better writer	1	1	15	13	8

Table 4.1.1 The Total Answers of Questionnaire in Listing

From the table above, most of the students were already understand about listing. There are three questions in how the students acted before writing. In

question number one, 10 students answered number 4 or "Often" and 8 students answered number 5 or "Most often". Also, 13 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 2 students answered "Never" and 5 students answered "Rarely", which means the total of 18 students always planned out first before writing, 13 students sometimes planned first what they want before writing, and the total of 7 students were not plan out first before writing.

In question number two, 15 students answered number 4 or "Often" and 6 students answered number 5 or "Most often". Also, 8 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 9 students answered number 2 "Rarely", which means the total of 21 students always organized their ideas first before writing, 8 students sometimes organized their ideas first before writing, and 9 students were not organize their ideas before writing.

In question number three, 10 students answered number 4 "Often" and only 1 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 16 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 10 students answered numbered 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered "Never", which means the total of 11 students always made a list before writing, 16 students sometimes made a list before writing, and 11 students were not make a list before writing.

In addition, There are four questions in how the students acted during writing. In question number four, 10 students answered number 4 "Often" and 7 students answered "Most often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "Never", which means the total of 17 students always

brainstormed and discussed to their friend before writing, 14 students sometimes brainstormed and discussed to their friend before writing, and 7 students were not brainstorm and discuss to their friend before writing.

In question number five, 11 students answered number 4 "Often" and 3 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 19 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and 2 students answered "Never", which means the total of 14 students always prepared a list of keywords or vocabulary in writing, 19 students sometimes prepared a list of keywords or vocabulary in writing, and 5 students were not prepare a list of keywords or vocabulary in writing.

In question number six, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and 10 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 11 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "Never", which means the total of 24 students always used a dictionary to help them in writing an idea, 11 students sometimes used a dictionary to help them in writing an idea, and 4 students were not use a dictionary to help them in writing an idea.

In question number seven, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and 4 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 11 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 18 students always used a dictionary after finished wrote a draft, 11 students sometimes used a dictionary after finished wrote a draft, and 4 students were not use a dictionary after finish write a draft.

Furthermore, There are three questions in how the students' felt after writing. Question number eight, 13 students answered number 4 "Often" and 6 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and 2 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 19 students felt that listing helped them to organized their idea in writing, 14 students felt that sometimes listing helped them to organized their idea in writing, and 5 students felt that listing were not help them to organize their idea in writing.

In question number nine, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and 7 students answered "Most often". Also, 15 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 student answered number 2 "Rarely" and 2 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 21 students felt listing helps them gained more confidence in writing, 15 students felt that sometimes listing helps them gained more confidence in writing, and 5 students felt listing were not help them gained more confidence in writing.

Lastly, in question number ten, 13 students answered number 4 "Often" and 8 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 15 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, only 1 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students too answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 21 students felt that listing helped them to be a better writer, 15 students sometimes felt that listing helped them to be a better writer, and 2 students felt that listing were not help them to be a better writer.

4.1.2 Freewriting

Freewriting is the step that students find the ideas by write anything about a specific topic without worry about spelling, grammar, etc.during write the ideas. In this research, researcher find the number of students by counting each question in the statement at each point. The table below contains of the total students' answer in each point of freewriting's self assestment questionnaire.

No	Number of question	Answer				
	2 MEE	1	2	3	4	5
1	I plan out first what I want to write	1	3	15	10	9
2	I practice grammatical structures which are required for a writing task beforehand	SARU	3	14	15	6
3	I like to write a draft in my native language first and then translate into English	55	6	14	16	2
4	If I lack the word, I just write something in my mind	1	2	18	8	9
5	I break down too long sentences into shorter and simple ones	1	3	14	14	6
6	I check my vocabulary and grammar	-	3	9	14	12
7	Freewriting helps me to me organize my writing	1	8	16	9	4

8	Freewriting helps me gain more confidence in writing	2	4	15	12	5
9	Freewriting helps me to be a	-	2	14	15	7
	better writer					

Table 4.1.2 The Total Questionnaire of Freewriting

From the table above, most of the students were already understand about freewriting. There are three questions in how the students acted before writing. In question number one, 9 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 10 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 15 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 19 students always planned out first in writing, 15 students sometimes planned out first in writing, 15 students sometimes planned out first in writing.

In question number two, 6 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 15 students answered "Often". Also, 14 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, only 3 students answered "Rarely" and nobody answered the number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 21 students always practiced their grammatical structures for a writing task before, 14 students sometimes practiced their grammatical structures for a writing task before, and 3 students were not practice their grammatical structures for a writing task before.

In question number three, only 2 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 16 students answered "Often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, only 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and

nobody answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 18 students always wrote a draft in their native language first then translated it into English, 14 students sometimes wrote a draft in their native language first then translated it into English, and 6 students were not write a draft in their native language first then translate it into English.

Furthermore, there are three questions about how students acted during writing. Question number four, 9 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 8 students answered "Often". Also, 18 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 2 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 student answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 17 students always wrote something in their mind if their lack of word, 18 students were not write something in their mind if their lack of word, and 3 students were not write something in their mind if their lack of word.

In question number five, 6 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 14 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered tumber 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 20 students always made a long sentences into a shorter and simple ones, 14 students sometimes made a long sentences into a shorter and simple ones, and 4 students were not make a long sentences into a shorter and simple ones.

In question number six, 12 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 14 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 9 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 26 students always checked their vocabulary and grammar in writing, 9 students sometimes checked their vocabulary and grammar in writing, and 3 students were not check their vocabulary and grammar in writing.

In addition, there are three question about how the students' felt after writing. Question number seven, 4 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 9 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 16 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 8 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 13 students felt that freewriting helped them to organized their writing, 16 students felt sometimes freewriting helped them to organized their writing, and 9 students felt that freewriting were not help them to organize their writing.

In question number eight, 5 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 12 answered number 4 "Often". Also, 15 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and 2 students answered number 1 "always not true", which means the total of 17 students felt that freewriting helped them gained more confidence in writing, 15 students felt sometimes freewriting helped them gained more confidence in writing, and 6 students felt freewriting were not help them gained more confidence in writing.

Lastly, in question number nine, 7 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 15 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 2 students answered number 2 "Rarely"

and nobody answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 22 students felt that freewriting helped them to be a better writer, 14 students felt sometimes freewriting helped them to be a better writer, and 2 students felt freewriting were not help them to be a better writer.

4.1.3 Looping

JERSITAS ISLAM

Looping is the step that students find the ideas by do a freewriting rapidly then circling or looping another interesting idea, phrase, or sentence that they find interesting in the topic. In this research, researcher find the number of students by counting each question in the statement at each point. The table below contains of the total students' answer in each point of listing's self assestment questionnaire.

No	Number of question	ARU				
	EKANE	2/1	2	3	4	5
1	I plan out first what I want to write	1	5	14	13	5
2	I organize my ideas prior to writing	55	6	17	11	4
3	I prepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary items	2	7	12	14	3
4	I marked the words to get the point that I need to write an essay	2	3	14	14	5
5	Looping helps me to me organize my writing	1	10	9	13	5
6	Looping helps me to gain more confidence in writing	1	5	15	11	6
7	Looping helps me to be a better	1	5	17	10	5

writer			
--------	--	--	--

Table 4.1.3 The Total Questionnaire of Looping

From the table above, most of the students were already understand about looping. There are three questions in how the students acted before writing. In question number one, 13 students answered number 4 "Often" and 5 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true" and 5 students answered "Rarely", which means the total of 18 students always planned out what they want to wrote first, 14 students sometimes planned out what they want to wrote first, and 6 students were not plan out what they want to write first.

In question number two, 11 students answered number 4 "Often" and 4 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 17 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 16 students always organized their ideas in writing, 17 students sometimes organized their ideas in writing, and 6 students were not organize their ideas in writing.

In question number three, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and 3 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 12 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, only 2 students answered number 1 "almost not true" and 7 students answered "Rarely", which means the total of 17 students always prepared a list of keywords or vocabulary in writing, 12 students
sometimes prepared a list of keywords or vocabulary in writing, and 9 students were not prepare a list of keywords or vocabulary in writing.

Furthermore, there is only one question about how students acted during writing. In question number four, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and 5 students answered "Most often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 2 students answered number 1 "almost not true" and 3 students answered "Rarely", which means the total of 19 students always marked the words to got the point in writing, 14 students sometimes marked the words to got the point in writing, and 5 students were not mark the words to get the point in writing.

In addition, there are three questions about how students' felt after writing. 13 students answered number 4 "Often" and 5 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 9 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 10 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 18 students felt that looping helped them to organized their writing, 9 students sometimes felt that looping helped them to organized their writing, and 11 students were not feel that looping helped them to organize their writing.

In question number six, 11 students answered number 4 "Often" and 6 students answered "Most often". Also, 15 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 5 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 17 students felt that looping helped them to gained more confidence in writing, 15 students felt sometimes looping helped them to gained more confidence in writing, and 6 students felt that looping were not help them to gain more confidence in writing.

Lastly, in question number seven, 10 students answered number 4 "Often" and 5 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 17 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 5 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 15 students felt that looping helped them to be a better writer, 17 students sometimes felt looping helped them to be a better writer, and 3 students felt that looping were not help them to be a better writer.

4.1.4 Clustering

Clustering or mind mapping is the step that students making a map of ideas in a particular topic into an outline. In this research, researcher find the number of students by counting each question in the statement at each point. The table below contains of the total students' answer in each point of clustering's self assestment questionnaire.

No	Number of question	Answer					
		1	2	3	4	5	
1	I plan out first what I want to write	1	2	16	12	7	
2	I organize my ideas prior to writing	-	3	15	14	6	
3	I prepare a list of useful keywords	-	6	12	16	4	

	or vocabulary items					
4	I write the topic in a few words in the center of page	-	4	19	14	1
5	I circling, grouping, and connecting each word around the central word	1	4	16	14	3
6	I check if the content relevant to the topic	1	4	12	15	6
7	Clustering helps me organize my writing	SLAM,	4	17	14	2
8	Clustering helps me gain more confidence in writing	1	6	20	10	1
9	Clustering helps me to be a better writer		6	19	9	4

Table 4.1.4 The Total Questionnaire of Clustering

From the table above, most of the students were already understand about clustering. There are three questions in how the students acted before writing. In question number one, 12 students answered number 4 or "Often" and 7 students answered number 5 or "Most often". Also, 16 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 1 students answered "Never" and 2 students answered "Rarely", which means the total of 19 students always planned out first before writing, 16 students sometimes planned first what they want before writing, and the total of 3 students were not plan out first before writing.

In question number two, 14 students answered number 4 or "Often" and 6 students answered number 5 or "Most often". Also, 15 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "almost not true, which means the total of 20 students always brainstormed and wrote their ideas first before writing, 15 students sometimes brainstormed and wrote their ideas first before writing, and 3 students were not brainstorm and write their ideas first before writing nize their ideas before writing.

In question number three, 16 students answered number 4 "Often" and 4 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 12 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered numbered 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered "Never", which means the total of 20 students always prepared a list of vocabulary items before writing, 12 students sometimes prepared a list of vocabulary items before writing, and 6 students were not prepare a list of vocabulary items before writing.

In addition, There are three questions in how the students acted during writing. In question number four, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and only 1 students answered "Most often". Also, 19 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "Never", which means the total of 15 students always wrote the ideas based from the topic in the center of page, 19 students sometimes wrote the ideas based from the topic in the center of page, and 4 students were not write the ideas based from the topic in the center of page.

In question number five, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and 3 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 16 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered "Never", which means the total of 17 students always circled,

grouped, and connected each word around the central of word, 16 students sometimes circled, grouped, and connected each word around the central of word, and 5 students were not circle, group, and connect each word around the central of word.

In question number six, 15 students answered number 4 "Often" and 6 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 12 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "Never", which means the total of 21 students always checked the content relevant to the topic, 12 students sometimes checked the content relevant to the topic, and 5 students were not check the content relevant to the topic.

Furthermore, There are three questions in how the students' felt after writing. Question number seven, 14 students answered number 4 "Often" and 2 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 17 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 19 students felt that clustering helped them to organized their writing, 17 students felt sometimes that clustering helped them to organized their writing, and 5 students felt that clustering helped them to organize their writing.

Question number eight, 10 students answered number 4 "Often" and only 1 students answered number 5 "Most often". Also, 20 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 11 students felt that clustering helped them gained more confidence in writing, 20 students felt that sometimes clustering helped them gained more confidence in writing, and 7 students felt that clustering were not help them gain more confidence in writing.

Lastly, in question number nine, 9 students answered number 4 "Often" and 4 students answered "Most often". Also, 19 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 student answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 13 students felt that clustering helped them to be a better writer, 19 students felt that sometimes clustering helped them to be a better writer, and 7 students felt clustering were not help them to be a better writer.

4.1.5 Journal's Question

Journal's question is the step that students finding an ideas by using the 5W + 1H questions in the topic to get an outline . In this research, researcher find the number of students by counting each question in the statement at each point. The table below contains of the total students' answer in each point of journal's questions self assestment questionnaire.

No	Number of question			Answer		
		1	2	3	4	5
1	I plan out first what I want to write	1	4	14	11	8
2	I brainstorm and write down ideas before I begin to write	-	6	16	9	7

3	I use 5W + 1H to get the ideas in writing an essay	2	6	8	14	8
4	I explore the ideas from the questions	1	6	10	13	8
5	Journal's questions helps me organize my writing	1	2	12	17	6
6	Journal's questions helps me gain more confidence in writing	0	6	14	13	5
7	Journal's questions helps me to be a better writer	2	43	9	18	6

Table 4.1.5 The Total Questionnaire of Journal's Question

From the table above, most of the students were already understand about journal's questions. There are two questions in how the students acted before writing. In question number one, 8 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 11 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 14 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 19 students always planned out first in writing, 15 students sometimes planned out first in writing, and 4 students were not plan out first in writing.

In question number two, 7 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 9 students answered "Often". Also, 16 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, only 6 students answered "Rarely" and nobody answered the number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 16 students always brainstormed and wrote their ideas first before writing, 16 students sometimes brainstormed and wrote their ideas first before writing, and 6 students were not brainstorm and write their ideas first before writing.

In addition, there are two question about how the students acted during writing. Question number three, 8 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 14 students answered "Often". Also, 8 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 2 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 22 students always used 5W + 1H to got an ideas in writing, 8 students sometimes used 5W + 1H to get an ideas in writing.

In question number four, 8 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 13 students answered "Often". Also, 10 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 21 students always explored the ideas from the questions in writing, 10 students sometimes explored the ideas from the questions in writing, and 7 students were not explore the ideas from the questions in writing.

In addition, there are three question about how the students felt after writing. Question number five, 6 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 17 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 12 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 2 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 23 students felt that journal's questions helped them to organized their writing, 12 students felt sometimes freewriting helped them to organized their writing, and 3 students felt that journal's questions were not help them to organize their writing.

In question number six, 5 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 13 answered number 4 "Often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "always not true", which means the total of 18 students felt that journal's questions helped them gained more confidence in writing, 14 students felt sometimes journal's questions helped them gained more confidence in writing, and 6 students felt journal's questions were not gain more confidence in writing.

Lastly, in question number seven, 6 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 18 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 9 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and 2 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 24 students felt that journal's questions helped them to be a better writer, 9 students felt sometimes journal's questions helped them to be a better writer, and 5 students felt journal's questions were not help them to be a better writer.

4.1.6 Cubing

Cubing is a step that students finding the ideas by used a six perspectives (describe, compare, associate, analyze, apply, argue or against) to get an outline. In this research, researcher find the number of students by counting each question in the statement at each point. The table below contains of the total students' answer in each point of cubing's self assestment questionnaire.

No	Number of question	Answer				
	9-100	1	2	3	4	5
1	I plan out first what I want to write	SLAM	5	12	13	7
2	I brainstorm and write down ideas before I begin to write	- 6	7	13	12	6
3	I describe about what I think about the topic		5	17	11	5
4	I compare the similarity and differences between the topics	1	4	15	14	3
5	I find the correlation between the topic	2	3	15	14	4
6	I analyze about how the topic can be done	ARU	6	13	12	7
7	I apply about how to use and do the topic	1	3	10	18	6
8	I give an opinion for positive and negative sides on a topic	2	3	14	9	10
9	Cubing helps me organize my writing	1	4	14	19	2
10	Cubing helps me gain more confidence in writing	1	2	14	19	2
11	Cubing helps me to be a better writer	1	2	16	16	3

Table 4.1.6 The Total Questionnaire of Cubing

From the table above, most of the students were already understand about cubing. There are two questions in how the students act before writing. In question number one, 7 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 13 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 12 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 5 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 20 students always planned out first in writing, 12 students sometimes planned out first in writing, and 6 students were not plan out first in writing.

In question number two, 6 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 15 students answered "Often". Also, 14 students answered "Sometimes". Unfortunately, only 3 students answered "Rarely" and nobody answered the number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 21 students always brainstormed and wrote their ideas first before writing, 14 students sometimes brainstormed and wrote their ideas first before writing, and 3 students were not brainstorm and write their ideas first before writing.

In addition, there are six questions about how students act during writing. Question number three, 5 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 11 students answered "Often". Also, 17 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 5 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 16 students always described about what they think in writing, 17 students sometimes described about what they think in writing, and 5 students were not describe about what they think in writing. In question number four, 3 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 14 students answered "Often". Also, 15 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 student answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 17 students always compared the similarity and differences about the topic, 17 students sometimes compared the similarity and differences about the topic, and 5 students were not compare the similarity and differences about the topic.

In question number five, 4 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 14 students answered "Often". Also, 15 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and 2 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 18 students always found the correlation between the topic, 17 students sometimes found the correlation between the topic, and 5 students were not find the correlation between the topic.

In question number six, 7 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 12 students answered "Often". Also, 13 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 6 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and nobody answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 19 students always analyzed about how the topic can be done, 13 students sometimes analyzed about how the topic can be done, and 6 students were not analyze about how the topic can be done.

In question number seven, 6 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 18 students answered "Often". Also, 10 students answered number 3

67

"Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 student answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 24 students always applied about how to used and do the topic in writing, 10 students sometimes applied about how to used and do the topic in writing, and 4 students were not apply about how to use and do the topic in writing.

Last but not least, in question number eight, 10 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 9 students answered "Often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 3 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 2 student answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 19 students always gave an opinion in positive and negatives side on the topic, 14 students sometimes gave an opinion in positive and negatives side on the topic, and 5 students were not give an opinion in positive and negatives side on the topic.

Furthermore, there are three questions about how students' felt after writing. Question number nine, 2 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 19 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 4 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 21 students felt that cubing helped them to organized their writing, 14 students felt that cubing helped them to organized their writing, and 5 students felt that cubing were not help them to organize their writing.

In question number ten, 2 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 19 answered number 4 "Often". Also, 14 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 2 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 students answered number 1 "always not true", which means the total of 21 students felt that cubing helped them gained more confidence in writing, 15 students felt sometimes cubing helped them gained more confidence in writing, and 6 students felt freewriting cubing help them gain more confidence in writing.

Lastly, in question number eleven, 3 students answered number 5 "Most often" and 16 students answered number 4 "Often". Also, 16 students answered number 3 "Sometimes". Unfortunately, 2 students answered number 2 "Rarely" and only 1 student answered number 1 "almost not true", which means the total of 19 students felt that cubing helped them to be a better writer, 16 students felt sometimes cubing helped them to be a better writer, and 3 students felt cubing were not help them to be a better writer.

4.2 Data Analysis

The researcher analyzed the data based on the indicators of questionnaire of prewriting strategies. There are six indicators : self assestment toward listing, freewriting, looping, clustering, journal's questions, and cubing.

PEKANBARU

4.2.1 Self assestment

Andrade & Valtcheva (2009) said that self assestment is a process which students reflect on the quality of their work, judge the degree to which it reflects explicitly stated goals or criteria, and revise accordingly. Furthermore, according to Andrade & Valtcheva (2009), Brown & Harris (2013), and Kasanen & Räty, 2002) in Andrews (2016), self assestment allows and encourages students to participate in the process of judging, evaluating, and reflecting on their own work or abilities. It means that self assestment is a valuation that gives students the opportunity to assess their ability in the learning process.

In this research, researcher analyzed students' questionnaire in use of prewriting strategies. After analyzing, based on the table could be found the



results of students' self-assestment questionnaire strategy used in prewriting in writing essay based on each strategy below.

4.2.1.1 Listing

In this research, students' self assestment toward listing is come after the students find a method for pleasure writing in right self assestment. Self assestment toward listing also being measurements of success writing. There are three sub indicators of self assestment toward listing such as preparation in writing, the steps of prewriting, and reactions after writing.

First, preparation before writing is a beginning that doing by a person to get an idea, including planning, discussing, brainstorming, and another activity in writing an essay. Thus, the steps of prewriting is about how students act during writing in writing an essay. Last, the reactions after writing is a final that how the students' felt after writing in writing an essay. There are several questions about the steps in prewriting and the researcher wants to know the answer what students' got from writing an essay. In total of 38 samples of students, the following table shows the question by question results of the survey:

1. I pla	an out first wha	t I want to write		
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	13%	34%	26%	21%
2. I or	ganize my ideas	prior to writing	I	
Never	Never	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	24%	21%	39%	16%
3. I ma	ake a list before	writing		

<u></u>	D 1			
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	26%	42%	26%	3%
4. I br	ainstorm and di	scussing to my frie	end before I be	gin to write
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	16%	37%	26%	18%
5. I pr	epare a list of us	seful keywords of v	vocabulary iter	ns
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	8%	50%	29%	8%
6. If I	lack the right w	ord, I use a diction	ary to help me	writing an idea
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	8%	29%	34%	26%
7. I us	e a dictionary af	ter I finish writing	g a draft	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
11%	5%	37%	37%	11%
8. List	ing helps me to 1	me organize my w	riting	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	8%	37%	34%	16%
9. List	ing helps me gai	in more confidence	e in writing	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	3%	39%	37%	18%
10. List	ing helps me to	be a better writer		I
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	3%	39%	34%	21%

Table 4.2.1 The Total Percentage Answer of Listing's Questionnaire (Adapted

from Hardy, 2011)

The first three questions asked the students' act before wrote an essay such as planned out first what they want to wrote, organized their ideas first, and made a list before wrote an essay. All of the students surveyed agreed to a certain extent. For the first question, 5% o of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 13% answered "Rarely", and 34% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 13% of students answered "Often", and 5% answered "Most often". In second question, 24% of students answered "Rarely", and 21% answered "Sometimes". Thus, 39% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often". Third question, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 26% answered "Rarely", and 42% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 26% of students answered "Often", and 3% of students answered "Most often".

Next, the four questions asked the students' act during wrote an essay such as brainstormed and discussed to their friends before wrote, prepared a list of vocabulary items, used a dictionary in wrote an idea, and used a dictionary after finished wrote an idea. Question number fourth, only 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 16% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 26% of students answered "Often", and 18% answered "Most often". In question number fifth, 5% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", 50% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 29% of students answered "Often", and 8% of students answered "Most often".

In question number sixth, only 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", 29% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 34% of students answered "Often", and 26% of students answered "Most often". Question number seventh, 11% of students

73

answered "always or almost always never true of me", 5% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 37% of students answered "Often", and 11% of students answered "Most often".

The three last questions asked the students' felt after wrote an essay such as listing helped them to organized their writing, helped them gain more confidence, and to be a better writer in wrote an essay. In question number eighth, 5% of students answered "Most often", 8% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 34% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often". Question number ninth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 3% answered "Rarely", 39% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 37% of students answered "Often", and 18% of students answered "Most often". Lastly, question number tenth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 3% answered "Rarely", 39% answered "Sometimes". In addition, answered "Often", and 21% of students answered "Most often".

From the questionnaires' percentage above, majority of the students sometimes planned out first before wrote in first question (34%). In second question, majority of students usually planned out first before wrote an essay (39%). In third question, majority of students sometimes make a list before writing an essay (42%).

According to the fourth question, majority of the students sometimes also brainstorm or discuss the idea before writing an essay (37%). In fifth question, majority of the studens sometimes prepare a list of keyword to help them wrote an essay (50%). In the sixth question, majority of the students usually use dictionary to help them writing an idea (34%). While in the seventh question, some of the students usually use a dictionary after they finish the draft (37%) and some of them sometimes use a dictionary after they finish the draft (37%).

In the eighth question, majority of the students felt listing sometimes help them to organize their writing (37%). In the ninth question, majority of the students felt listing usually helps them gain more confidence in writing (37%). And in the last question in listing, majority of the students felt sometimes listing helps them to be a better writer (39%).

4.2.1.2 Freewriting

Students' self assestment toward freewriting is come after the students find a method for pleasure writing in right self assestment. Self assestment toward freewriting also being measurements of success writing. There are three sub indicators of self assestment toward freewriting such as preparation in writing, the steps of prewriting, and reactions after writing.

First, preparation before writing is a beginning that doing by a person to get an idea, including planning, practicing grammatical structures, writing a draft in their native language and another activity in writing an essay. Thus, the steps of prewriting is about how students act during writing in writing an essay. Last, the reactions after writing is a final that how the students' felt after writing in writing an essay. There are several questions about the steps in prewriting and the researcher wants to know the answer what students' got from writing an essay. In total of 38 samples of students, the following table shows the question by question results of the survey:

Never		I want to write	Often	Most often
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Wost often
3%	8%	39%	26%	24%
2. I pr	actice grammati	cal structures whi	ch are require	d for a writing
	beforehand		1 RIG	0
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	8%	37%	39%	16%
	e to write a draf English	<mark>ft in</mark> my native lang	guage first and	l then translate it
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	16%	37%	42%	5%
4. If I	la <mark>ck</mark> the word, I	just write somethi	ng in my mino	1
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	5%	47%	21%	24%
5. I br	ea <mark>k do</mark> wn too lo	ng sentences into s	horter and <mark>si</mark> n	nple ones
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	8%	37%	37%	16%
6. I ch	eck my vocabula	ary and grammar		
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	8%	24%	37%	32%
7. Free	writing helps m	e tome organize m	y writing	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	21%	42%	24%	11%
8. Free	writing helps m	e gain more confic	lence in writir	ng
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	11%	39%	32%	13%
9. Free	ewriting helps m	e to be a better wr	iter	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often

0%)	5%	37%	39%	18%
----	---	----	-----	-----	-----

Table 4.2.2 The Total Percentage Answer of Freewriting's Questionnaire

(Adapted from Hardy, 2011)

The first three questions asked the students' act before wrote an essay such as planned out first what they want to wrote, practicing grammatical before, and wrote a draft in their native language firsr in writing an essay. All of the students surveyed agreed to a certain extent. For the first question, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", and 39% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 26% of students answered "Often", and 24% answered "Most often". In second question, 8% of students answered "Rarely", and 37% answered "Sometimes". Thus, 39% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often". Third question, 16% answered "Rarely", and 37% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 42% of students answered "Often", and 5% of students answered "Most often".

Next, the three questions asked the students' act during wrote an essay such as wrote something in their mind if they lacked some words, broke down a long sentences into a shorter and simple sentences, and checked a vocabulary and grammar in wrote an essay. Question number fourth, only 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 5% answered "Rarely", 47% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 21% of students answered "Often", and 24% answered "Most often". In question number fifth, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 37% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often". Question number sixth, 8% of students answered "Rarely", 24% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 37% of students answered "Often", and 32% of students answered "Most often".

The three last questions asked the students' felt after wrote an essay such as freewriting helped them to organized their writing, helped them gain more confidence, and to be a better writer in writing an essay. In question number seventh, 3% of students answered "Most often", 21% answered "Rarely", 42% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 24% of students answered "Often", and 11% of students answered "Most often". Question number eighth, 5% of students answered "Most often", 11% answered "Rarely", 39% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 32% of students answered "Often", and 13% of students answered "Most often". Lastly, question number ninth, 5% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 39% of students answered "Often", and 18% of students answered "Most often".

From the questionnaires' percentage above, majority of the students sometimes planned out first before wrote in first question (39%). In second question, majority of students usually practiced out grammatical structures for a writing task before in writing an essay (39%). In third question, majority of students usually write a draft in their native language first then translate it into English in writing an essay (42%).

According to the fourth question, majority of the students sometimes also write something in their mind if they lack some word (47%). In fifth question,

some of the studens usually break down long sentences into a simple ones (37%), and some of them sometimes break down long sentences into a simple ones (37%). In the sixth question, some of the students usually check their vocabulary and grammar in their writing (37%), and some of students always check their vocabulary and grammar in their writing (32%).

In the seventh question, majority of the students felt freewriting sometimes help them to organize their writing (42%). In the eighth question, majority of the students felt sometimes freewriting helps them gain more confidence in writing (39%). And in the last question in freewriting, majority of the students felt that freewriting usually helps them to be a better writer (39%).

4.2.1.3 Looping

Students' self assestment toward looping is come after the students find a method for pleasure writing in right self assestment. Self assestment toward looping also being measurements of success writing. There are three sub indicators of self assestment toward freewriting such as preparation in writing, the steps of prewriting, and reactions after writing.

First, preparation before writing is a beginning that doing by a person to get an idea, including planning, organize the ideas first in writing, prepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary items and another activity in writing an essay. Thus, the steps of prewriting is about how students act during writing in writing an essay. Last, the reactions after writing is a final that how the students' felt after writing in writing an essay. There are several questions about the steps in prewriting and the researcher wants to know the answer what students' got from writing an essay. In total of 38 samples of students, the following table shows the question by question results of the survey:

		DEITAS ISI AN		
1. I I	o <mark>lan</mark> out first what	I want to write	RIAL	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	13%	37%	34%	13%
2. I c	org <mark>anize my ideas</mark> j	prior to writing	2 3 5	-
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	16%	45%	29%	11%
3. I p	orepare a list of use	eful keywords or	vocabulary ite	ms
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	18%	32%	37%	8%
4. Ir	narked the words	to get the point th	at I need to w	rite an essay
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	8%	37%	37%	13%
5. Lo	ooping hel <mark>ps m</mark> e to	me organize my v	writing	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	6%	34%	24%	13%
6. Lo	oping helps me ga	in more confiden	ce in writing	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	13%	39%	29%	16%
7. Lo	ooping helps me to	be a better writer	•	I
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	13%	45%	26%	13%

Table 4.2.3 The Total Percentage Answer of Looping's Questionnaire (Adapted

from Hardy, 2011)

The first three questions asked the students' act before wrote an essay such as planned out first what they want to wrote, organize their ideas first in writing, and prepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary in writing an essay. All of the students surveyed agreed to a certain extent. For the first question, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 13% answered "Rarely", and 37% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 34% of students answered "Often", and 14% answered "Most often". In second question, 16% of students answered "Rarely", and 45% answered "Sometimes". Thus, 29% of students answered "Often", and 11% of students answered "Most often". Third question, 5% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 18% answered "Rarely", and 32% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 37% of students answered "Often", and 8% of students answered "Most often".

Next, one question asked the students' act during wrote an essay such as marked the words to get the point that they need in writing and essay. In question number fourth, 5% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 37% of students answered "Often", and 13% answered "Most often".

The three last questions asked the students' felt after wrote an essay such as looping helped them to organized their writing, helped them gain more confidence, and to be a better writer in writing an essay. In question number fifth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 6% answered "Rarely", 34% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 24% of students answered "Often", and 13% of students answered "Most often". Question number sixth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 13% answered "Rarely", 39% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 29% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often". Lastly, question number seventh, 3% of students answered "Most often", 13% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 26% of students answered "Often", and 13% of students answered "Often", and 13% of students answered "Most often".

From the questionnaires' percentage above, majority of the students sometimes planned out first before wrote in first question (37%). In second question, majority of students sometimes organized their ideas first in writing (45%). In third question, majority of students usually prepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary in writing (37%).

According to the fourth question, some of the students sometimes mark the words to get the point in writing an essay (37%) and some of them usually mark the words to get the point in writing an essay (37%). In the fifth question, majority of the students felt looping sometimes help them to organize their writing (34%). In the sixth question, majority of the students felt sometimes looping helps them gain more confidence in writing (39%). And in the last question in looping, majority of the students felt that looping usually helps them to be a better writer (45%).

4.2.1.4 Clustering

Students' self assestment toward clustering is come after the students find a method for pleasure writing in right self assestment. Self assestment toward clustering also being measurements of success writing. There are three sub indicators of Self assestment toward clustering such as preparation in writing, the steps of prewriting, and reactions after writing.

First, preparation before writing is a beginning that doing by a person to get an idea, including planning, brainstorming, prepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary items and another activity in writing an essay. Thus, the steps of prewriting is about how students act during writing in writing an essay. Last, the reactions after writing is a final that how the students' felt after writing in writing an essay.

There are several questions about the steps in prewriting and the researcher wants to know the answer what students' got from writing an essay. In total of 38 samples of students, the following table shows the question by question results of the survey:

Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Mastaftan
	Sometimes	Onen	Most often
5%	42%	32%	18%
rainstorm and w	rite down ideas be	fore I begin to	write
Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
8%	39%	37%	16%
repare a list of us	seful keywords or v	vocabulary ite	ms
Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
16%	32%	42%	11%
vrite the topic in a	a few words in the	center of the p	bage
Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
11%	50%	37%	3%
	Prainstorm and w Rarely 8% prepare a list of us Rarely 16% vrite the topic in a Rarely	Prainstorm and write down ideas between the second seco	Prainstorm and write down ideas before I begin to Rarely Sometimes Often 8% 39% 37% orepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary ite Rarely Sometimes 16% 32% 42% vrite the topic in a few words in the center of the p Rarely Sometimes Rarely Sometimes Often

word				
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	11%	37%	42%	8%
6. I che	ck if the conter	nt relevant to the t	opic	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	11%	32%	39%	16%
7. Clust	ering helps me	e to me organize m	y writing	Oh I
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	11%	45%	37%	5%
8. Clust	ering helps me	gain more confid	ence in writing	g
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	16%	53%	26%	3%
9. Clust	ering helps me	e to be a better wri	ter	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	16%	50%	24%	11%

Table 4.2.4 The Total Percentage Answer of Clustering's Questionnaire (Adapted

from Hardy, 2011)

The first three questions asked the students' act before wrote an essay such as planned out first what they want to wrote, brainstorm, and prepare a list of useful keywords and vocabulary before writing an essay. All of the students surveyed agreed to a certain extent. For the first question, 3% o of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 5% answered "Rarely", and 42% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 32% of students answered "Often", and 18% answered "Most often". In second question, 8% of students answered "Rarely", and 39% answered "Sometimes". Thus, 37% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often". Third question, 16% of

students answered "Rarely", and 32% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 42% of students answered "Often", and 11% of students answered "Most often".

Next, the three questions asked the students' act during wrote an essay such write the topic in the center of page, circling, grouping, or connecting each word, and check if the content relevant to the topic. Question number fourth, 11% answered "Rarely", and 50% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 37% of students answered "Often", and 3% answered "Most often". In question number fifth, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 11% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 42% of students answered "Often", and 8% of students answered "Most often". In question number sixth, only 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", 29% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 34% of students answered "Often", and 26% of students answered "Most often".

The three last questions asked the students' felt after wrote an essay such as clustering helped them to organized their writing, helped them gain more confidence, and to be a better writer in wrote an essay. In question number seventh, 3% of students answered "Most often", 11% answered "Rarely", 45% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 37% of students answered "Often", and 5% of students answered "Most often". Question number eighth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 16% answered "Rarely", 53% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 26% of students answered "Often", and 3% of students answered "Most often". Lastly, question number ninth, 16% answered "Rarely", and 50% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 24% of students answered "Often", and 11% of students answered "Most often".

From the questionnaires' percentage above, majority of the students sometimes planned out first before wrote in first question (42%). In second question, majority of students sometimes brainstorm and write down ideas before begin to write in writing an essay (39%). In third question, majority of students usually prepare a list of useful keywords or vocabulary before writing (42%).

According to the fourth question, majority of the students sometimes also write the topic in the center of the page (50%). In fifth question, majority of the studens usually circling, grouping, and connect each word into a mind mapping (42%). In the sixth question, majority of the students usually check if the content relevant to the topic (39%).

In the seventh question, majority of the students felt clustering sometimes help them to organize their writing (45%). In the eighth question, majority of the students felt clustering usually helps them gain more confidence in writing (53%). And in the last question in clustering, majority of the students felt sometimes clustering helps them to be a better writer (50%).

4.2.1.5 Journal's Questions

Students' Self assestment toward journal's questions is come after the students find a method for pleasure writing in right self assestment. Self assestment toward journal's questions also being measurements of success writing. There are three sub indicators of self assestment toward journal's questions such as preparation in writing, the steps of prewriting, and reactions after writing.

First, preparation before writing is a beginning that doing by a person to get an idea, including planning, brainstorming, and another activity in writing an essay. Thus, the steps of prewriting is about how students act during writing in writing an essay. Last, the reactions after writing is a final that how the students' felt after writing in writing an essay. There are several questions about the steps in prewriting and the researcher wants to know the answer what students' got from writing an essay. In total of 38 samples of students, the following table shows the question by question results of the survey:

1. I plar	n out first what	I want to write	ICT T	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	11%	37%	29%	21%
2. I brai	instorm and w	rite down ideas bef	fore I begin to	write
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	16%	42%	24%	18%
3. I use	5W + 1H to ge	t the ideas in writi	ng an essay	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	16%	21%	37%	21%
4. I exp	lore the ideas f	rom the questions		
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	16%	26%	34%	21%
5. Jouri	nal's questions	help me organize	my writing	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	5%	32%	45%	16%
6. Jouri	nal's questions	help me gain more	e confidence in	n writing
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often

0%	16%	37%	34%	13%	
7. Journal's questions help me to be a better writer					
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often	
5%	8%	24%	47%	16%	

Table 4.2.5 The Total Percentage Answer of Journal Questions' Questionnaire

(Adapted from Hardy, 2011)

The first two questions asked the students' act before wrote an essay such as planned out first what they want to wrote and brainstorm before writing an essay. All of the students surveyed agreed to a certain extent. For the first question, 3% o of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 11% answered "Rarely", and 37% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 29% of students answered "Often", and 21% answered "Most often". In second question, 16% of students answered "Rarely", and 42% answered "Sometimes". Thus, 24% of students answered "Often", and 18% of students answered "Most often".

Next, the two questions asked the students' act during wrote an essay such as use 5W + 1H to get an ideas and explore the ideas from the question in writing an essay. Question number third, 5% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me, 16% answered "Rarely", and 21% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 37% of students answered "Often", and 21% answered "Most often". In question number fourth, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 11% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes".

The three last questions asked the students' felt after wrote an essay such as journal's questions helped them to organized their writing, helped them gain more confidence, and to be a better writer in wrote an essay. In question number fifth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 5% answered "Rarely", 32% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 45% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often". Question number sixth, 16% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 34% of students answered "Often", and 13% of students answered "Most often". Lastly, question number seventh, 5% of students answered "Never", 8% answered "Rarely", and 24% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 47% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often".

From the questionnaires' percentage above, majority of the students sometimes planned out first before wrote in first question (37%). In second question, majority of students sometimes brainstorm and write down ideas before begin to write in writing an essay (42%). In third question, majority of the students usually use 5W + 1H to get the ideas in writing (37%). In fourth question, majority of the students usually also explore the ideas from the questions before in writing (34%). In the fifth question, majority of the students felt clustering usually help them to organize their writing (45%). In the sixth question, majority of the students felt clustering sometimes helps them gain more confidence in writing (37%). And in the last question in clustering, majority of the students felt clustering usually helps them to be a better writer (47%).

89

4.2.1.6 Cubing

Students' self assestment toward cubing is come after the students find a method for pleasure writing in right self assestment. Self assestment toward cubing also being measurements of success writing. There are three sub indicators of Self assestment toward cubing such as preparation in writing, the steps of prewriting, and reactions after writing.

First, preparation before writing is a beginning that doing by a person to get an idea, including planning, brainstorming, and another activity in writing an essay. Thus, the steps of prewriting is about how students act during writing in writing an essay. Last, the reactions after writing is a final that how the students' felt after writing in writing an essay. There are several questions about the steps in prewriting and the researcher wants to know the answer what students' got from

writing an essay. In total of 38 samples of students, the following table shows the question by question results of the survey:

1. I pl	an out first what	t I want to write		
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	13%	32%	34%	18%
2. I br	ainstorm and w	rite down ideas be	fore I begin to	write
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	18%	34%	32%	16%
3. I de	escribe about wh	at I think about th	e topic	I

Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	13%	45%	29%	13%
4. I co	mpare the simil	arity and differenc	es between the	e topics
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	13%	39%	37%	7%
5. I fin	d the correlation	n between the topi	c	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	8%	39%	37%	11%
6. I an	alyze about how	to the topic can b	e done	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
0%	16%	34%	32%	18%
7. I ap	ply about how to	o use and do the to	pic	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	8%	26%	47%	14%
8. I giv	ve an opinion for	r positive and nega	tive sides on a	topic
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
5%	8%	37% BAR	24%	26%
9. Cub	oing helps me to	me organize my w	riting	
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	5%	50%	29%	13%
10. Cub	oing helps me ga	nin more confidenc	e in writing	I
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	5%	37%	50%	5%
11. Cub	oing helps me to	be a better writer	[I
Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Most often
3%	5%	42%	42%	8%

Table 4.2.6 The Total Percentage Answer of Cubing's Questionnaire (adapted

from Hardy, 2011)
The first three questions asked the students' act before wrote an essay such as planned out first what they want to wrote and brainstorm before wrote an essay. All of the students surveyed agreed to a certain extent. For the first question, 3% o of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 13% answered "Rarely", and 32% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 34% of students answered "Often", and 18% answered "Most often". In second question, 18% of students answered "Rarely", and 34% answered "Sometimes". Thus, 32% of students answered "Often", and 16% of students answered "Most often".

Next, the six questions asked the students' act during wrote an essay such as describe about what they think about the topic, compare the similarity and differences, find the correlation between the topic, analyze the topic, apply about how to use and do the topic, and give an opinion for positive and negative sides in writing an essay. Question number third, 13% of students answered "Rarely", 49% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 29% of students answered "Often", and 13% answered "Most often". In question number fourth, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 13% answered "Rarely", 39% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 37% of students answered "Often", and 7% of students answered "Most often".

In question number sixth, 16% of students answered "Rarely", 34% answered "Sometimes". Furthermore, 32% of students answered "Often", and 18% of students answered "Most often". Question number seventh, 3% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", 26% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 47% of students answered

"Often", and 14% of students answered "Most often". Question number eighth, 5% of students answered "always or almost always never true of me", 8% answered "Rarely", and 37% answered "Sometimes". Then, 24% of students answered "Often", and 26% of students answered "Most often".

The three last questions asked the students' felt after wrote an essay such as cubing helped them to organized their writing, helped them gain more confidence, and to be a better writer in wrote an essay. In question number ninth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 5% answered "Rarely", 50% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 29% of students answered "Often", and 13% of students answered "Most often". Question number tenth, 3% of students answered "Most often", 5% answered "Rarely", 37% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 50% of students answered "Often", and 5% of students answered "Most often". Lastly, question number eleventh, 3% of students answered "Most often", 5% answered "Rarely", 42% answered "Sometimes". In addition, 42% of students answered "Often", and 8% of students answered "Most often".

From the questionnaires' percentage above, majority of the students usually planned out first before wrote in first question (34%). In second question, majority of students sometimes brainstormed first before wrote an essay (34%). In third question, majority of students sometimes described about what they think about the topic in writing an essay (45%).

According to the fourth question, majority of the students sometimes compared the similarity and differences between the topics in writing (39%). In fifth question, majority of the studens sometimes found the correlation between the topic in writing (39%). In the sixth question, majority of the students sometimes analyzed about how the topic can be done in writing (34%). While in the seventh question, majority of the students usually applied about how to use and do the topic during writing (47%). In the eighth question, majority of the students sometimes gave their positive and negative sides on a topic in writing (37%).

Next, in the ninth question, majority of the students felt cubing sometimes help them to organize their writing (50%). In the tenth question, majority of the students felt cubing usually helps them gain more confidence in writing (50%). And in the last question in cubing, some of the students felt sometimes cubing help them to be a better writer (42%), and some of them felt cubing usually help them to be a better writer (42%).

All of the data above in each strategies were analyzed by using:

$$P = \frac{F}{N} x 100\%$$

Which is:

P = The results

- F = Total point of students' questionnaire answer
- N = The total of questions in each strategy

4.2.1.7 Dominantly Prewriting Strategy Used

In analyzing students' strategy in prewriting step in their writing essay, the researcher used the results of students' self assestment questionnaire in use of prewriting strategies. To make it clear, the researcher transfered the data into the specific table. The data were analyzed by took the total score of 1 student and divide it by the number of statements of each strategy.

-

P				STTAS ISLAN			
Students' Number	Listing	Freewriti ng	Looping	Clustering	Journal's Question	Cubing	Dominant Strategy
St 1	3,20	3,22	3,43	3,33	2,57	3,18	Looping
2	4,10	3,78	3,71	3,44	4,14	4,09	Journal's Question
3	2,90	3,67	4,00	3,56	3,29	3,64	Looping
	2,90	4,56	2,57	3,33	5,00	4,18	Journal's Question
5	3,40	3,33	3,14	2,56	3,43	3,18	Journal's Question
6	3,90	3,44	3,43	3,67	3,86	3,55	Listing
7	2,90	3,33	3,14	3,22	3,00	2,82	Freewriting
8	3,60	3,33	3,29	3,33	4,29	3,27	Journal's Question
9	3,60	3,56	2,86	3,56	3,43	3,36	Listing
10	3,70	3,89	4,00	3,22	3,14	3,55	Looping
2.11	4,00	3,78	4,14	4,11	4,57	4,36	Journal's Question
12	3,40	3,33	3,29	2,89	3,00	3,36	Listing
13	2,90	2,78	3,29	3,00	2,71	2,91	Looping
14	4,60	4,11	3,71	4,00	4,43	4,45	Listing
15	3,50	4,11	4,00	4,11	4,29	4,18	Journal's Question
16	3,10	3,56	3,57	3,44	4,14	3,82	Journal's Question
17	3,50	3,89	3,14	3,56	4,00	3,00	Journal's Question
18	4,60	4,67	4,14	4,11	4,43	4,45	Freewriting

	1						
19	3,20	3,44	2,71	3,78	3,86	3,64	Journal's Question
20	3,80	4,67	4,43	4,22	4,00	4,00	Freewriting
21	1,90	3,11	3,86	3,00	2,29	3,45	Looping
22	3,80	3,56	3,43	3,33	4,14	3,45	Journal's Question
23	3,60	3,67	3,71	4,00	3,43	3,73	Clustering
24	2,80	3,11	3,14	3,11	2,57	2,82	Looping
25	3,40	2,78	3,14	3,11	3,29	3,45	Cubing
26	3,70	3,67	3,57	3,44	3,29	3,36	Listing
27	2,90	3,00	2,43	3,33	3,57	2,73	Journal's Question
28	3,40	3,67	1,71	2,89	1,57	2,64	Freewriting
29	3,50	3,11	3,43	2,56	3,14	2,91	Listing
30	3,50	3,22	2,29	3,44	3,00	3,27	Listing
31	4,10	3,22	4,43	3,33	5,00	4,27	Journal's Question
32	3,70	3,33	4,43	3,56	3,86	4,09	Looping
33	3,30	3,00	2,86	A 3,HAR	3,14	3,09	Listing
34	3,00	3,33	3,14	3,11	3,29	3,27	Freewriting
35	3,50	3,44	3,57	3,44	3,00	3,36	Looping
36	3,10	3,56	3,14	3,44	2,71	3,73	Cubing
37	3,80	3,89	3,29	3,44	4,29	3,36	Journal's Question
38	3,20	3,67	2,00	3,33	3,43	2,36	Freewriting
L	1						

Table 4.2.7 The Percentage of Students' Prewriting Strategies used in Writing essay

4.2.1.8 Dominantly Strategy Used

The researcher found the data to answer research question number 2. There are four strategies in prewriting which were proposed by experts. After analyzing students' questionnaire, it was found that students dominantly used journal's question in writing an essay. This technique got a high percentage. Students used a 5W + 1H to make an outline or draft before writing an essay. It can be seen from the data below.

No.	Strategy	Total Students	Total Percentage of Strategy Used
1	Listing	8	21%
2	Freewriting	6	15,7%
3	Looping	8	21%
4	Clustering		2,6%
5	Journal's Question	13	34,2%
6	Cubing	2	5,2%
I	Total PEP	38	

Table 4.2.8 The Percentage of Strategy Dominant Used

The data were analyzed by using:

$$P=\frac{F}{N}x100\%$$

Which is:

P = The results

F = The total students of each strategy used

N = The total of all students

CHAPTER V

CONCLUSIONS AND SUGGESTIONS

5.1 Conclusions

In this research, there are two main points that researcher find out in this research. There were strategy in prewriting used and the dominant strategy that students used in prewriting in writing essay. In the first point, based on the data analysis in chapter 4, it can be concluded that the strategy in prewriting used in writing essay were listing, freewriting, looping, clustering, journal's questions and cubing.

Thus, the second point is the dominant strategy in prewriting used by students. After conducting and analyze the data from 38 students, the researcher found that 8 students used listing as their strategy in writing essay. 6 students used freewriting as their strategy in writing essay. Then, 8 students used looping as their strategy in writing essay. Only 1 student used clustering as their strategy in writing essay. 13 students used journal's questions as their strategy in writing essay. Only 2 students used cubing as their strategy in writing essay.

The dominant strategy that students used in prewriting was journal's questions (34,2%), which is students found the information of the topic to get an outline by using 5W + 1H. It was because this is the simple strategy which students can easily developed the ideas for their essay, and it can avoid the plagiarism. Students did not use clustering and cubing in generated ideas in essay, maybe because clustering and cubing were complicated to use in generating ideas in writing essay.

Furthermore, most of students did not understand about prewriting strategy in essay writing. They need more explanation and practice to make them get to use the strategy. Therefore, the number of plagiarism will decrease because students will avoid the plagiarism issue in the future in writing essay.

To sum up, this research wanted to know about the strategy that students' used in prewriting step in writing essay. Then, this research results already answered the researcher's question. The problem can be fixed together, lecturer and students, but the most affected is the students itself. Lecturer only give the explanation and other treatment to make the students get used to use prewriting strategy to developed the ideas in writing essay.

5.2 Suggestions

Based on the result of the data, the researcher would like to give some suggestion dealing with the lecturer, students, and the next researcher.

5.2.1 For Lecturer

Lecturers could include prewriting strategy material in writing subject. The prewriting materials should include how to use it in the beginning in writing. Specifically, lecturer could teach the strategies to include the prewriting step in writing essay. Teaching material also include the way how to use them in grammatically, so the students should develop their ideas in writing.

5.2.2 For Students

Students should pay attention to lecturer's explanation about the strategy in prewriting in order to understand. Then, students should be brave to use the strategy in their prewriting step to avoid the plagiarism. If the students are brave to use the strategy, their essay become stronger than before.

ISLAM RIAL

5.2.3 For Further Research

This research already found the strategy that students used in prewriting step in essay writing. Then, the researcher also found some problems in students' questionnaire and how they feel during used the strategy. Researcher hope that the findings in this research can be useful for the next research in the future.



REFERENCES

- Acharya, Bidhan. 2010. *Questionnaire Design*. University Grants Commision: Nepal.
- Anker, Susan. 2009. *Real Essays with Reading: Third Edition*. Bedford/St. Martin. Boston, USA.

Andrade, Heidi and Anna Vatcheva. 2009. Promoting Learning and Achievement Through Self-Assessment. The College of Education and Human Ecology. Ohio State University: USA.

- Andrews, Chris. 2016. Student self-assessment: Teachers' definitions, reasons, and beliefs. Brigham Young University: Utah, USA.
- Baker, Jack, Allen Brizee, Elizabeth Angeli. 2015. Purdue OWL: Essay Writing. Retrieved from https://owl.english.purdue.edu on January, 19 2019 18.10 PM.
- Baroudy, Ismail. 2008. A Procedural Approach to Process Theory of Writing: Prewriting Techniques. The International Journal of Language and Society. Shahid Chamran University: Iran. 24. 1-10.
- Brown, Douglas H. 2001. Teaching by Principles an Interactive Approach to Language Pedagogy second edition. Longman: New York.
- Brown, Douglas H. 2003. Language Assessment Principles and Classroom Practice. Longman: New York.

- Cahyono, Bambang Y. 2012. Helping EFL Learners to Develop Ideas in Writing Using the Cubing Technique. Cahaya Lingua. State University of Malang, East Java.
- Cameron, J. 2008. Prewriting Strategies for Exploring Ideas. Canada: Douglas College.
- Chin, Peter, Samuel Reid, Sean Wray, Yoko Yamazaki. 2011. *Academic Writing Skills 2 Student's Book.* Cambridge University Press, Student Edition.
- Dawson, Melanie. *Prewriting: Cubing.* Retrieved from www.writing2.richmond.edu on August, 25 2019 18.21 PM.
- Fatimah, Muthia Sari. 2017. An Analysis Of Students' Strategy In Using Annotated Idea In Writing Discussion Essay : A Study At English Department Of Universitas Negeri Padang. Padang: Universitas Negeri Padang. Indonesia.
- Finch, Jannette. 2009. *Brainstorming topic ideas*. South Caroline: College of Charleston North and Lowcounty Graduate Center.
- Gall, Meredith, Joyce P. Gall, Walter Borg, R. Walter. 2012. *Educational Research an Introduction: Seventh Edition*. USA: Pearson Education, Inc.
- Gay, L. R. 1987. Educational Research: Competencies for Analysis and Applications third edition. Longman: New York.
- Hammond, Eugene R. 2007. Critical Thinking Thoughful Writing. USA: McGraw-Hill, Inc.

Hardy, Darrell. 2011. Student Feedback on the Effectiveness of Prewriting Activities. Japan: Toyogakuen University.

Harmer, Jeremy. 2007. How to Teach English. Essex: Pearson Education Inc.

- Harrison, Bob. 2009. Writing Your Command Article v2.0. California: ER Harrison & Associates, Inc.
- Hyland, K. 1990. *A Genre Description of the Argumentative Essay*. Retrieved from https://www.researchgate.net on February, 11 2019 20.43 PM.
- Hyland, K. 2003. Genre-based pedagogies: a social response to process. Journal of Second Language Writing. 12(1):17-29. Retrieved from www.caes.hku.hk on Sept, 20 2018 12.15 PM.
- Kawulich, Barbara. 2012. Collecting Data through Observation. Retrieved from www.researchgate.net_on Sept, 26 2019 15.01 PM.
- Maboe, KA. 2009. *Computer Assisted Instructions in Nursing Education*. South Africa: University of South Africa.
- Mogahed, M. Mogahed. 2013. *Planning Out Prewriting Activities*. Egypt: Faculty of Education, Mansoura University.
- Mohite, Miroslawa. 2014. An Investigation into the English Language Writing Strategies Used by Polish EFL Secondary Second Learners. England: London Metropolitan University.

- Nunan, David. 2003. Practical English Language Teaching. Singapore: McGraw-Hill Publishing.
- O'Mealia, Shannon. 2011. *How Can Prewriting Strategies Benefit Students*. New York: St. John Fisher College.
- Oshima, Alice and Ann Hogue. 2006. *Writing Academic English: Fourth Edition*. Pearson Education Inc. White Plains: New York.
- Peha, S. 2010. The Writing Teacher's Strategy Guide: Easy-to-Teach Techniques for Writers Up and Down the Grade Levels and Across the Curriculum. Pg 58. Retrieved from www.ttms.org on September, 20 2018 12.08 PM.
- Perutz, Vivien. 2010. *A Helpful Guide to Essay Writing*. Cambridge & Chelmsford: Anglia Ruskin University. Retrieved from <u>www.anglia.ac.uk</u> on January, 15 2019 16.12 PM.
- Prewriting strategies. Retrieved from www.writing.ku.edu on August, 25 2019 18.13 PM.
- Raoofi, Saeid and co. 2017. Assessing and Validating a Writing Strategy Scale for Undegraduate Students. Iran: Farhangian University.
- Refnaldi. 2010. Essay Writing: A Process Genre Based Approach. Padang : Universitas Negeri Padang.
- Richards, Jack C and Renandya Willy A. 2002. *Methodology in Language Teaching an Anthology of Current Practice*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Servati, Katrina. 2012. Prewriting Strategies and their Effect on Student Writing. New York: St. John Fisher College.

- Sugiyono, 2015. Metode Penelitian Pendidikan Pendekatan Kuantitatif, Kualitatif, dan R&D. Alfabeta: Bandung.
- Tardif, R., and C. Klassen. 2014. Comparison & Contrast (extended). Vancouver: Douglas College, Canada.
- The Writing Process: Prewriting Strategies. Retrieved from www.englishpost.org on August, 25 2019 18.23 PM.

Urquhart, Vicki and McIver Monette. 2005. *Teaching Writing in the Content* Areas. Retrieved from www.ascd.org on Sept, 30 2018 12.06 PM.

Wilkinson, David and Peter Birmingham. 2003. Using Research Instruments A Guide for Researcher. London: England.